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II{DEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

Honorable Mayor and IVembeG oflhe
Municipal Assembly

l!4unicipality of San Sebasli6n, Puerto Rico

We have audited lhe accompanying financial stalemenls of the govemmental activities, the businesstype

actiriGs, each malor fund. and lhe iggregale remaining fund information of Municipality of San sebartian'

puerto Rico as oi and for the year ended June 30. 2010, which coltectively mmprise lhe i,{unicipatity of san

sebas en, Puerto Rico's basic financial slalemenis as listed in the table of contents These {inancial slatemenls

arc the responsibilily of i\.,lunicipalily of San Sebastirn, Puerto Rico's managemenl' Our responsibillly is to

express opinions on these financial statements based on ouraudit.

We conducled orr audit in accordance with auditing standads gene[ally accepted in the Uniled Stales of

A;erica and ihe standards applicable to linanciataudits contained in Govemnent Audriling Starda/dg issued by

theComptrcllerGeneraloitheUnitedStates.Thoseslandardsrequkelhatv/eplanandpedomtheaudltto
obtain re;sonable assurance about [hether the financial statements are free of maletial misstatement. An audit

includes exa ining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial slalemenb

assessing the ac;ounling principles used and the signilicant estimates made by managemenl, as well as

evatuatini me overatt lna-ncial *;tement prcsentation. We believe lllat our audit provides a reasonable basis fo[

ouropinions

As morc fuIly desc bed in Note 8' the MUnicipaliiy of San Sebastan, Puedo Rico has e)(cluded ils obligation for

certain posdmpbymeni benefits due to the Employees Rel remenl System of the Golernment of Puerto Rico

(ERs)foltheamounlof$1'106,252includinginterestchargedof$137367as0fJune30.2010-Thisobligal]on
irisei trom tte appllcauon of special laws $/hich require the Municipalily lo cover the annual increase in the

rettrcment plan of iL re{red employees and other beneills such as medicines bonus, Christmas bonus and dealh

benefits. l; our opinion, accounlinq principles generally accepted in the United Slales of Ame ca rcquire lhat

such obligalions be included in lhe governmental aciivilies and in the gene[al fund. lf the tinancial slalements

rere con;ded for that deparlurc flom U.s genemlly accepted accounting principles, the beginning net assets ot

govemment activities and the beginning fund balance of geneml fund as of June 30, 2009, would be decreased

6y $748,543 liabilities in the gorirnmental aclivities and general lund $/ould have increased by $1 ,l 06 252 as of

J;ne 30, 2010, nel asset i;govemmental aclivities and iund balance of the general fund would decrease by

$357,706 as of June 30, 201-0 and change in nel assels of govemmental aclivities and net change in fund

balance ofgeneralfund would decrease by $357,709forthe yearended June 30,2010

ln our opinion, except fo[ lhe effecls oI the matle[ discussed in lhe preceding paGgraph the linancial slatements

refened'to previousiy present fai y, in all material respects, financial position ol the goveinmental aclivilies and

oeneraliund oi the Munlcroality ot san sebastt6n, Puerto Rico as of June 30, 2010, and the changes in iinancial

;osilion thereof for the year lhen ended rn conformity wilh accounting p nciples generalry accepted ln lhe United

Stales of America.



INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
(coNTINUED)

ln addition, in our opinion, the iinancial slalefients refened to previously present faidy, ln all material respects,

the rcspeclive financial posilion of the business-iype activilies, Head Start, Debt Service and Loans funds' and

the agg rcgate rema ining fund information of the Municipalily of San Seba$ian, P!e(o Rico, as ol J une 30, 201 0,

and the rcspective changes in linancial posilion and, uihere applicable, cash flo$/s thercof for lhe year then

ended in conformily with accounting principles geneElly accepted in the Uniled States ofAmerica.

ln accordance wilh Government Auditing Standards, we also issued our report daled December 2T 2010, on our

consideralion of lhe l!4unicipality of San Sebasti6n, Puerto Rico's inlemal control over linancial reponing and our

tests ol its compliance with cedain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and gtanl agreemenls and othel

matters. The purpose of that report is lo descflbe the scope of our lesting of inlernal conlrol ovel linancial

reporting and compliance and the rcsull of that tesling, and nol lo provide an opinion on inlemal conlrcl over

linancial reporiing or on compliance. That repod is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with

Governmenl Auditing Standards and should be considered in assessing the resulls ofour audit.

Accounting principles generally accepted in the lJniled States ol Ame ca require thal the management's

discussion and analysis and budgelary comparison infomation on pages 3 thrcugh 13 and 55 lhrough 56 be

pGsenled to supplement the basic linancial stalemenls. Such infoflnallon, although nol a paft of the basic

financial slalemenls, is rcquked by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board, \,!ho considers it to be an

essenlial parl of linancial reporling for placing the basic financial statements ln an appropriate operaiional,

economic, or hislorical context. We have applied certain limited procedures lo the requked supplemenlary

informallon in accordance with auditing slandads generally accepled in lhe Uniled States of America, which

consisted of inquiies ol management about ihe methods of prepa ng the informalion and comparing the

inforrnalion for consistency $/ith managements responses to our inquiries, the basic linancial slatemenls, and

olher knowledge we oblained durlng our audil of the basic ,nancial statements. Wedo nolexpressan opinion or

prcvide any assurance on the informalion because lhe limited procedures do not provide us wilh sLfficienl

evidence lo express an opinlon or prcvide any assurance.

Olr audit was conducled for the purpose of forming opinions on the linancial slalements thal colleciively

comp se the Municipality ol San Sebaslien, Puerto Rico's flnancial statements as a whole The accompanying

schedule of expendilures oI federal awards is presenled for purposes of additional analysis as requircd by U.S

Olfice of lvanagement and Budget Circular A-133, Audits of States Local Governmenls, and Non-Profit

Organizations, and is not a required parl of lhe financial siatements The schedule of expenditures of federal

awads is lhe responsibility of management and v!6s de ved from and relate directlylo the undedying accountng

and other records used to preparc the financialslatements. The information has been subjected to the audiling

procedures applied in the audil of the financial slalements and certain add ilional procedures, including compa ng

and reconciling such infomation dircctly to the underlylng accounting and olher procedures in accodance wilh

audiling standads gene€lly accepted in the United Stales oIAmerica ln our opinion, lhe information is fai y

stated in all material respects in reiation lo lhe linancial statemenls as a whole

,/ aoueu rono a co.. csp
LICENSE #35.IN FORCE

Yauco, Pueio Rico

December 27, 2010

Slamp #2583309 was afllxed lo
the o ginaloflhis reporl

ROJIAN TORO & CO., CSP Certilied Public 
"lccontants 

and Business Consuhan^
Po ROX 3043 vALtCo PR 00698-3013 . TEL. (787) 856-622A F.LY. 1787) 856-6233



COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO

MUNICIPALITY OF SAN SEBASTIAN

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2()1()

The management of Municipality ol san sebastian, Puerto Rico (Municipality)oflers lhis narrative overview and analysis of

itre Rn.anciii activities ot the Munlcipality lor the fscat year ended June 30, 2010. The l\,lanagement's Discussion and Analysis

iNtba,q) i. uesign"a to focus on ti]e iunent year aciivities, resulting changes and currenfly known facts, and much of the

into,ruiion is dmparable to prior year' This 1lO&A should be read in conjunction with the accompanying basic fnancial

statements and the accompanying notes to those linancialstatements.

The new reporliflg model required by GovernmentalAccounting standards Boad statement No. 34 was implemented during

fscal 2003-i004.jhis [/D&A is prepared in order to comply with such pronouncement and, among other purposes, to provide

the financial slatements usels with the following maior inlormation:

. a broader basis in focusing important issues:

. acknowledgement of an overview oflhe ltlunicipality's financial activitiesj

. fiovide forin evaluation of its financial condition as ofthe end ofthe indicated fiscalyear, compared with p.ior year results;

. identification of uses oftunds in the fnancing ofthe Municipality's variety of actrvities and;

. assess management's abilityto handle budgetary functions

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

The following are ley iinancial highlights for the fscalyear:

. The Municipality,s assets exceeded its liabilities at June 30, 2010 by $36,725,292, and al June 30, 2009 by $34,646,323, as

restaled;
. The lrunicipaltys totalnet assets increase by$2078,969 du ng frscalyear 2009-2010:

. As of June 30,'2010, the l\rlunicipatity s gov;mmental tunds r,ported combined ending tund balance of $10,097,022, an

increase of$3,949,875 fiom the p oryear;
. AtJune 30,2010, the Statement ol Net Asset presented an unrestricted defrcit of $(2,422,852);

. During fiscal year 2009-2010. the l\,lunicipality issue $5.275.000 in bonds and notes deblsi

. Tne liunicipjtity's capital assets inventory inirease as a result ol lhis year's operctions. Capital assets as of June 30, 2010

were $47,698,724 (net of accu mulated depreciation);
. The investment in capitalassets for lhis year was $31,659,294 (nel of related debt)i

. Loans principal paymenb werc $1,325,000 and $1,020,000 in 2010 and 2009, respectively'

PROPRIETARY FUND HIGHLIGHTS

. The total net assets ol the proprietary tund amounted to $973,526, ofwhich $'456,228 are invested in capital assets, net of

related debt, while $452,660 are.estricted fol the operations offederally tunded programs'

. fm totat neiasseS ofthe proprietary fund decreased by $14,164 duing the fiscatyear ended on June 30, 20'10

ovERVtEW OF THE BAStb rtllnlcnL stlretlems

This discussion and analysis are intended to serve as an intoduction to the lrunicipality's fnancial statements. The

l\rlunicipality,s basic financial statements comprise three @mponenls: govemmenlwide fnancial statements: fund inancial

statementq and notes to the fnancial statements. This report also contains other supplementary information in addition to tie

basic {inancial statements themselves.

ROMAN TORO & CO. CSP Certife.l Public Acconta tsand Business Consultants

PO BOX 1043 YAUCO PR A0698-3043 IEL. (787) 856'6220 F'4't: (787) 856 6231



COi,!MONWEALTH 0F PUERTO RICO

MUNICIPALITY OF SAN SEBASTIAN

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2()1()

GOVERNMENT.WDE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The gove.nmenlwide fnancial stalements are composed of: (1) the statement of net assets and (2) the statement of aclivities.

These financial slatements can be found immedialely following this l,rD&A. These fflancial statements are designed to provide

readers with a broad oveNiew olthe [.lunicipality's finances, in a manner similar to a private-sector business.

STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS

The purpose ofthe statement of net assets is to attempt to report allassets owned and all liabilities owed by he Municipality.

The l!,lunicipality reporls of all of its assels when it acquires ownership over $e assets and reports all of its liabilities when

they are iflcuffed. For example, the Municipality reports buildings and inlGstructure as assels, even though lhey are not

available to pay the obligations incuned by the l.,lunicipality. 0n the other hand, tle [,lunicipality repods liabilities, such as

claims and judgments bonds and notes payable, obligatiofls under capital leases, compensated absences and cerlain

accounts payable and accrued liabilitjes, even lhough these liabilities might not be paid until several fscal yearc into the

future.

The difference between the l\y'unicipality's tolal assets and total liabilities reported in he statemenl of net assets is presented

as net assets, which is similar to the total owners'equity reported by a commercial enterprise in its financial statements.

Although the pueose ol the lrunicipality is not to accumulate net assets, as this amouflt increases or decreases over time,

such amount represents a useful indicator of whether lhe frnancial position of the Municipality is either improving or

deterioralifl g, respectively.

STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES

The statement of activities presenls infomation showiog how the Municipalily's net assets changed during the fiscal year

ended June 30, 2010, by presenting all of the Municipality's revenues and expenses. As previously discussed, lhe items

repoded in the statement of activities are measured ifl a manner similar to the approach used by a commercial enterprise in

lhat rcvenues are recognized when eamed or established c.iteria arc salislied, and expenses are rccorded when incurred by

lhe Municipality. Consequently, revenues are reported even when they may not be collected for severalmonths after the end

of the fiscal year and expenses are recorded even lhough they may not have used cash du ng the cunent year.

Although the statement of activities looks differcnt lrom a commercial enterprise's income statement, the difierence is only in

format, not subslance. Whereas the bottom line in a com mercial enlerprise represents its nel income, the Municipality rcports

an amountdescribed as net change in net assets, which is essentially the same concept.

The focus of the statement of activities is on the net cost of various activilies provided by fie lrunicipality. The statemenl

begins with a column that identifies the cost of each of the Municipality's major functions. Another column identifies ihe

revenues that are speciica,ly related to the classified governmental funclions. The difference beiween the expenses and

revenues related to specific functions/programs identifies the extent to which each function of the Municipality draws from

generalrevenues or is self-fnancing through fees, intergovernmeotalaid, and other sources ofresources.

This stalement also presents a compadson between direct expenses and program revenues for each function of the

lvlunicipality.

ROMAN TORO & CO., CSP Ceiilied Public AccoMtantsand Business Consultants

PO ROX )a$ YAUCO PR 00698-3043 . TEL. (787) 856 6224 FAX. t187) 856 6233



COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO

MUNICIPALITY OF SAN SEBASTIAN

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSIONANDANALYSIS (CONTINUED)

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2O1O

GOVERNMENT.WDE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

Both of be government-wide ,inancial stateme,rts of lhe Lilunicipality are p ncipally suppotud by laxes and i[tergovernmental
revelues. The ltlunicipality's activities include; general government, public safety, public works, culture, recreation, health and

welfare, and interests. Property laxes, volume ofbusiness taxes, sales taxes, and state and federalgrants finance most of these
activities.

FUND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The l,4unicipality's fund financial stalemenls consist of: (1) the balance sheet - governmental funds, (2) fle slatement of
revenues, expenditures and changes in fund balances - govemmental fuflds, (3) the statement of oel assets - proprietary fund,
(4) lhe slatement of reverues, expenses and changes in fund net assels - proprietary Iund, and (5) lhe statement of cash flows

- proprieiary fund. These financial stateme[ts report lhe financial position, the results of operations and cash flows of lhe
Itlunicipality's governmental and proprietary funds, with an emphasis on lhe i.4unicipality's major governmental and proprietary

funds.

A fund is a grcupiru of related accounts that is used lo maintajn control over rcsources lhal have been segregated lor specific
activities or objectives. The lvunicipality, like most other state and local govemments, uses fund accounting to ensure and

demonstrate compliance with inance-related legal requirements. Each fund is considered an independent fiscal entity
accounled for within a set of self-balancing accounts that comprise its assets, liabilities, fund equity, revenue, alld expenditures.

Fufld accounting segrcgates fuflds according to their inlended purpose and is used lo aid management in demonstraiing
compliance with legal. financial and contractual provisions

GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

The ltlunicipality's basic services are reporled in lhe govemment fund fnancial statements. The govemmenl funds are

reported using an accounting method called modiried accrual accounting, which measures cash and all other linancial assets

that can readily be converted into cash. Govemmental funds are used to account for essentially the same functions reported

as governmental activities in the govemmentwide financial statements. However, unlike the govemment-wide financial
statements, governmental fu0d financial statements focus on near-lerm iniow! and outflows of spendable resources, as well

as on balances of spendable resources available at the end of the fiscal year. Such inlormalion may be useful in evaluating a
govemment's near-term fnancing requirements. Because lhe locus of governmental funds is narrower than that of lhe
govemmenlwide financial statements, il is useful to compare the inlormation presented lor governmental funds with similar
infomation presented for governmental activities in the govemment-wide financial statemenls. 8y doing so, readers may

betler understand the long-tem impact ol lhe government's near-term financing decisions.

The lt4unicipality adopts an annual appropriated budget for its geneEl fund. A budgetary comparison slatement has been
provided for the general fund to demonslrate compliance with this budget.

PROPRIETARY FUND

The p.oprietary tund is a tund used to report lhe frnancial position, results of operalion and cash flows of Villa Soigal (Project

No. 63-29-665705492,01-3), a housing development consisting of 120 dwelling unils located in San Sebaslian.

ROIUN TORO & CO.. CSP Ce ilie.l Public Accobta tsa d Busin?ss Consuhants
PO ROX 1013 YAUCO PR 00698-301J . TEL. (787) 856 622a F,,LY: 087) 856 6233



COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO

MUNICIPALITY OF SAN SEBASTIAN

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSIONANDANALYSIS (CONTINUED)

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2()I()

FUND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

PROPRIETARY FUND (CONTINUED)

The project is owned by the Municipality, but its operations are canied oul by a private management agent unrelated to the

l\4unicipality. The housi0g developmenl projecl of Villa Soigal has bee0 designed to assist various segments of the gefleral
public in obtaining adequate and reasonable priced renlal housing. The project operates under fnancing th.ough the Section

I New Construction and Substantial Rehabilitation Program ofhe U.S. Department ol Housing and Uban Development and

the Section 515 Rural RentalHousing Loans Program of the lJ.S. Department of Agriculture. The purpose ofVilla Soigalis to
provide adequate housing to low-income residents oflhe Nlunicipality.

The activities of Villa Soigal have been reported as a proprietary fund in the accompanyi0g basic fnancial slatements since
GMP pemils tle use of enterprise funds lo report any activity lor which a lee is charged to external use.s of goods or
services, regardless ofwhetherthe govemment intends to fully recover lhe cosl of he goods or services prcvided. Thus, it is

common to use proprietary fund reporting to account for services where the govemmenl intends to recover only a portion of
its costs lhrough fees or user charges.

Proprietary funds provide the same type ofinformation as the GWFS, but in more detail.

NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The notes provide additional information that is essential to a tull understandiflg of he data provided in the government-wide
and fund fnancial stalemenk

OTHER INFORMATION

ln addition to lhe basic linancial statemenls and accompanying notes, this report also presenls cerlain required supplementary

information containing budgetto actual comparisons for the generaland majorfunds.

ROM4N TORO & CO., CSP Ce ilied Puhlic Accoqtdn^ and Busihess Cohsultants
PO BOX 3013 YAUCO PR U698-1013 . TEL. 1787) 856-e20 FAX: (787) 856-62)l



COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO
MUNICIPALITY OF SAN SEBASTIAN

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2O1O

GOVERNMENT.WOE FINANCIAL ANALYSIS

GOVERNMENTAL NET ASSETS

As noted earlier, net assets may serve over time as a useful indicator of a government's financial position. ln the case of the

Municipality, governmental activilies assets exceeded liabilities by $36,725,292 as of June 30, 2010, versus $34,646,323 as of
June 30, 2009, as restated, and business-type activities assets exceeded liabilities by $973,526 as of June 30, 2010, veEus

$987,690 as of June 30,2009. Our analysis below focuses on the net assets (Table'l) and changes in net assets ol lhe
Municipality's governmental activities and business-type activities.
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COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO

MUNICIPALITY OF SAN SEBASTIAN

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION ANDANALYSIS (CONTINUED)

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2O1O

GOVERNMENT-WIDE FINANCIAL ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)

The largest po.tion of the Municipality's net assets reflects its investrnent in capilal assels (e.9. land, buildings, machinery and

equipment), less any related debt used to acquare those assels slill outstaflding. These capilal assets are used to provide

services to citizens; consequently these assets are not avaihbb for fulure spending. lt should also be noted that the resources

Iequired to lepay the rclated debt must be provided from olher sources, since the capital asseb themselves cannot be used to
liquidate lhese liabilities. An additional portion ofthe l\4unicipality's net assels represents resources that are subject to external
restrictions on how they may be used.

GOVERiIMENTAL ACTIVITIES

Governmental activities increased the Municipality's net assets. Key elements oi lhis increase are as follows: the [.4!nicipality's
governmental activities had net expenses ot $13,938,183. However, these services are intended to be primarily funded by
taxes, as opposed to charges for services and grants, and $ose taxes and other general revenues exceed oel expenses by

$2,078,969. ln addition, business-type aclivities decreased the Municipality's net assets by $'14,1 .

The cost of all governmeotal activities and business-type aclivilies this year was $23,607,736. Table 2 presents lhe cost ofeach
of he [4unicipality's largest programs.
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Ner*sets b€iniing, as Bht€d

$ 13867,086
809,985

5,183,6,13

1,762,048

2.191U2
430 309
230257
589 3'

6 473.865
1325.547

5 753.879
2366,385
6,390,909

674,993

$15,268,022
1,288,262

4,336 891

1,850 059
1,861285

416,842
425,26

25,446,621

1.747,526
1,332.316

1,244,$1
1,247,Nl
8,102,933

840,640

6!7,994

11,312

14164,154
809,985

5183,643
1762,0,18

2191,U2
430.309
x4257

25,612,541

6,473,865
1,325,547

5,753,879
2,366,385
6,937,585

23 607.736

2 00t,805
35 634 013

15,852,438

1284,262

4.336,891

1,850,059

1,861,285

416,U2
436578

26 U2,355

7,741,526
1332,316
1240,831
1241,087
8,651,451

922,1U

21,141,405

4,900,950

30,733 063

__l!!!!!ll

597668 584416

22.985.578

2,078 969

u u6,323

20,511339

4,935,288
29 711,035

_!-ry,g!-

622.1fl

(14,164)

_!r1!3!-

v8,518
01,548

630,066

(34,338)

1,022,028

-ry-

546.676
15.482

4x6,725,N2 37,698,818

ROMAN TORO & CO., CSP Cetified Public Accouta tsandBusinessCo suhahts
PO BOX 3043 YAUCO PR 00698 1013 . TEL.1787) 856 6220 FAX: (787) 856-623J



COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO

MUNICIPALITY OF SAN SEBASTIAN

MAT,IAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2O1 ()

GOVERNMENT.WDE FINANCIAL ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)

2010 Revenues
z* 2%

1%
t Grants and conl bulions

r ChargesforseMces

r Propertytrxes

r itunicipal licens.tax

a Sales and use tax

s Oth.l local taxei

r ini.red and irwe,tra*edr&gs

I Mscclr|edrs

10 Expenditures

. Geneial govemment

E Publicsafety

a Culturc and recrcalion

E Heallh and $Dlfare

r1lr crest on longrtem debls



COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO
MUNICIPALIW OF SAN SEBASTIAN

MANAGEMENT',S DTSCUSSTONANDANALySTS (CONTT UED)

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2()1()

GOVERNMENT.WDE FINANCIAL ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)

Approximately thidy-seven percent (37%)ofthe l\runicipality's govemmental activities totalrevenue came lrom taxes, while fifty-
six percenl (56%) resulted from grcnts and contributions. Federal grants represent forty percent (40%) of the l\runicipality grants

revenues. The lrunicipality's govemmental activities expenses included items such as general government, public safely, public
works, cufture and rccreation, health and welfare and intereston long term debts.

Approximately twenty-eight (28%) of total expenses resulted from general government, twenty-tour percent (24%) from public
wo*s,len perc€nt (10%)fiom culture and recreation and twenty-nine percent (29ol4 from heallh and welfare.

GOVERNMENT FUND FINAI{CIAL ANALYSIS

As noted earlier, the

requirements.

Elleil
g.l.nc. Sh.qt

Totalasers MalorFunds
Totalaseh olhe.Funds

Tota I abi ities - li4ator Fuods
Totd llabi ilies - Othd Funds

U eseNed - Maior Fuids

combined lDlar tu nd ba a nes

201!

$ 12,096 433

3 1d756,31'a

$ 3,975,067
684,215

4,659282

6,399 049
1,975656
1,722.317

10.N7,022

2@
lft rc.trledl

$ 0,974.527
1.988.1,15

3 i0,962,672

t 4,396,v6
419,179

4815,525

3,829,480
322,754

1,994,909

6,141,147

Itlunicipality uses fund accounling to ensure and demonstrate compliance with finance,related legal

16,m0,000

14,m0,m0

12,000,000

10.000,000

8,000,000

6,0m,000

4,m,0m

2,0m,000

0

.2010

r 2m9

Tolal Assels Tolal Tolal Fund

LiabiliU€s Belances

Totil ll.Dilrd.t ,nd tund b.l.nc€. t 11,756,301 I 10,962,6?2

The focus of the l.,lu0icipality's governmental funds is to provide information on near-term inllows, outflows, and balances of
spendable resources. Such infomatio0 is useful in assessjng the Municipality's financing requiremenls. ln pa.ticular, unreserved

fund balance may serve as a usefulmeasure ofa govemment's net resources available forspending at the end of its fiscalyear.
At June 30, 2010, the ltlunicipality's governmental lunds reported combined ending fund balances of $10,097,022, an increase

of $3,949,875 from the prioryear.

The Municipality has an unreserved fund balance ol $1,722,317 in its General Fund. The remainder of lhe balance is reserved

to indicate that it is nol available for new spending because it has aheady been committed; (a) to liquidate prior year obligations
($243,285), (b)to pay debt seryice ($1,544,452) and (c)for other reslricted purposes ($6,586,968).

ROMAN TORO & CO., CSP Cetiled Public Acconta tsa d Buliness ConsuLants 10
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COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO

MUNICIPALITY OF SAN SEBASTIAN

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED}

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2()IO

GOVERNMENT FUND FINANCIAL ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)

tus!
Ch.nB. in FuId B.l.n63

Tolal cvenu€s - M4or Funds
Tolal Even@s - Olher Funds

C.mbin€d ioLl evenues

Iotal expendiiuB - Major Fm&
TolalexpendltuB O$erFunds

Combined lolal expenditues

Oher nnaNins soum (uses):

Othq linam ng $u@s - Mator

Oher financiig sources - Olher

Combired otEr frnancin! eurc4

Nel danges in tund balance

Fund Balanco - begmning, as rcslrlod

?!1!

t n n3,226

?5.4U.547

19,547230
6,U2,442

26.389672

4@

$ 23,208,218
2,238 409

25,446,627

25,964,715
2,144,314

28,109025

35 m0,0m

30,000,m0

25,000,000

m,om 000

15,000,000

10,0m,000

5,000,m0

.n10

.2009

5,275,000

5,275,000

3,949 0i5

6,147,147

-!-!!ry-

5,000,0m

(2.662398)

8809,545

1 91!7L

PROPRIETARY FUND FINANCIAL ANALYSIS

At June 30, 2010, the total assets of propdetary tund amounted to $2,060,347, which consisted p.incipally of: (1) restricted cash

ifl commercial banks of $452,660, and (2) capital assets of $1,503,201, net ofaccumulated depreciation.

At June 30, 2010, the total liabilites of the proprietary tund amounted to $1,086,821, which co0sisted principally ofr (1) modgage
notes payable of$1,046,973, and (2)accounts payable and accrued liabilities of$26,755.

The total net assets of proprietary fund amounted to $973,526 at June 30, 2010, of whach $,456,228 are jnvested in capital

assets, and $452,660 are reserved forprogram activities.

ROM4N TORO & CO., CSP Cetilie.l Public Accotntantsand Business Consultants 11

PO ROX 3043 |AUCO PR 00698-3043 . TEL. (787) 856-6220 F,4r: 087) 856-6213
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COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO

MUNICIPALITY OF SAN SEBASTIAN

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSIONANDANALYSIS (CONTINUED)

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30,2OIO

- BUDGETARY HIGHLIGHTS

Budget and actual compadson schedules are provided in the Basic Financial Statements lor the Genelal Fund. The Budgetary

_ Comparison Schedule of the General Fund shows lhe original adopted budgets, he ,inal revised budget, actual results, and
variance between the final budget and actual results for $e general and major special revenue funds. Table 5 summarizes the
results olthe Genelal Fund's Budgetary Comparison Schedule:

Table 5

Actual
FinalBudqet Amounk Variance

Tolalrevenues

Tolai expenditures, enc!mbrances and
other fnancing uses

Excoss or deficiency

$ 14,426,203 $ 13,137,814 $ 1,288,389

14j26203 13.327.798 1 098.405

t_ ,_ l_o89t!4 lr1!9t84)

The original and the final budget of the General F0nd for lhe liscal year ended June 30, 2010 amounted lo $ 14,426,203. Over

- the course of the fiscal yea., the Municipality revised lhe General Fund's budget in order lo include increases and decreases in

revenues that were identified duriog lhe course of the fscal year based on current developments lhat positively affected the
Itlunicipality's finances. The laws and regulalions ofthe Common!,/ealth mandale a balanced budget.

- The total actual revenues (budgetary basis) of lhe general fund for the fscal year eflded June 30, 2010 werc $13,137,814,
which is nine percent (90/o), or $1,288,389 less than the budgeted rcvenues. ln addition,lhe tolal actual expendit0res and other
,inancing sources (budgetary basis) of he general fund lor [le liscal year ended June 30, 2010 were $13,327,798, which is

- eight percent i87o), or $1 ,098,405 less than the budgeted expenditu res.

_ CAPITAL ASSETS AND DEBT ADMINISTRATION

The Municipality's inveslment in capitalassets for its governme0tal type activities as of June 30, 2010 amounted to $,47,698,724
(nel of accumulated depreciation). This investment in capilal assets includes land, buildings, improvements, fumiture and

- ixtures, vehicles and equipment, and infrastructure. The total iocrease in the Municipality's investment in capital assets for the
currenl fiscal year was $1,053,002. Table 6 present $e major classes of capital assets.

_ Tabte 6

Capital Assets Amount

Construction in progress $ 1,986,885

' Land 5,737,776
Buildj0gsandbuiuingimprovements 27,631,910
Furniture and fi(u.es 685,345

- Vehicles and equipment 538,836
lnfrastuctu.e 11.117.912

TotalAssets S_ 4169EJ24

12
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COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO
MUNICIPALITY OF SAN SEBASTIAN

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDEO JUNE 30, 2O1O

LONG.TERXI DEET

At June 30, 2010, the Municipality had btal of $21,945,454 in
Table 6. Of this amount, $17,557,000 comprises debt backed

other obligations.

general obligations and ofrers outstanding debts, as shown in

by the full faith and credit of he government and $!4,388,454 is

Table 6

Long Term Debts Amount

Ge0eral obligatio0s bonds and notes $ 17,557,000

Others

Total Long Term Debts $ 21t45,454

The llunicipality is rcquired to limit the amounl of general obligation debt to 10% of the total assessment of property located
within the Municipality in orderfor the bonds to be repaid with the proceeds of property laxes rcstricted for debt services. Other
obligations include accrued vacation and sick leave and advances of property taxes. l\y'ore detaibd ioformation about the
lrulicipality's longterm liabililies is presented in the notes to the fnaocial statements. The i,4unicipality continues to meet ils
financial needs through prudenl use of its revenues and creative debtlinancing programs.

ECONOMIC FACTORS AND NEXT YEAR'S BUDGETS AND RATES

Local, nationaland international ecommic factors influence lhe l\,4unicipality's revenues. Positive economic grcwth is correlated
wilh increased revenues from lloperty taxes, volume of busifless taxes, sales laxes, charges for seNices, as $/ell as stale and
federal grants. Ecorcmic groMh in the local economy may be measurcd by a variety of indicators such as employment groMh,
unemploymenl, new construction, assessed valuation, and other revenues.

All of these lactors were considered in preparing the Municipality's budget for the 2010 fiscal year. Some cost reduclions helped
fund improvements of existing facilities, public safety and works, economic development initiatjves and human seNice
improvements.

REOUESTS FOR INFORMATION

This inancial repod is designed to provide a general oveNiew of lhe l\runicipality's finances for all those with an interest in the
government's fnances. Questions concerning any ofthe information provided in this report or requests for additionalinformatjo0
contact the l\,lunicipality's Finance Deparlme0t at (787)896-1550.

ROM4N IORO & CO., CSP Certilied Public Acco.,ltants and Business Consultunts 13
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ASSETS:

Mlniipal Loisa br€s

Rent licens and perdE

Misc€llareols pepaij expens

Land, itrpovemE, and @nsiud)n in progrs
Oner 6pibl a*b, netot depBiaton

9ther asse6

TOTAL ASSETS

LIABILITIES:

Acounb p8yablo and acou€d labltes

Due b govemMbl uni6

D@hmrenandeye.r

IOfAL LIABILIflES

,{ET ASSETS

lnv6td in 6phl aeb, netof Ekbd debi

TOTAL i{ET ASSETS

Commonweafth of Puerto Rico
Municipality of San Sebasfien

Statement of NetAssets
June 30,20'10

Govemmental
Activities

5,869,285

1,627,058

133,652

161,374

21021

8a 196

15].719

61,975

13,821

14,135,167

Business'type
Aclivities

s 81,892

1,480

86.932

Ie&!

$ 5,951 177

7 627 A5a

133,652

161,374

21,021

88.r96

158779

61 975

15307

14222 499

452 660 452,660

7124 661

39974,063

58350

1,,144,851

7,783,011

41,418914

47 698 724 1.503.201

11,554

2,060,u1

49 201 925

61,833,891

17 554

63 894 238

828,s58

242 828

383634

1 346 229

165430

196,466

1.330.290

25,108,599

31659294

2 419 452

5 069 398

12 422852)

87,651

26,155

13093

959,322

1 086,821

156229

452.660

64.638

81,651

855,313

13,093

242 828

383.634

1.346 229

165 430

196466

r 330 290

21 514 486

26195 424

32,115,522

2.419.152

5,522,058

(2.358.214)

! q@q!a!6,725,292 973,526

ROtf,AN TORO & CO
PO ROX 3013 YAUCO PR

CSP Ceiilied Public Accot tants an.l Business Consuha ts
00698-3013 . TEL. (787) 8s6 20 F.4,Y: t787) 856-6233
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Commonwealth of Puerto Rico
Municipality of San Sebasti6n

Balance Sheet
Govemmental Funds

June 30,2010

stan

Debl

qhsr loral

Govei'fiR]tal GoYenmot.l

Fundi Funds

Lirbitli.. d fund Edtnce.

Li'li[€s

Aiouib payatie 4d acdued ht{es

Tobr rlablles

Tobliifld babnces (deld

Iot.r E.bifte. dtd lund balanco.

3,95/6m I

133,fr2

88,1S

7.(82

1Zom

371,715

.t
2.601401

39858

21021

1.893 25/
m5,0@

121.516

151,e,97

41.050

950

246.392

5.869 285

/.627 058

1336'
161374

214?1

88196

158 779

51975

138?7

621137

18.419 $ $

4 820 657

m 925

808

4,573,3,44 t 40,152 ! 2,662 280 t 1820,657 I 2,659,871

2{0446 $ 154103

I899 364 682

l___11156,3r1

828 558

875 000

242W4

383 634

621137

1346.229

165 430

196 466

435,021 $

3813,63

2,6.W

1W.74

196.166

3€ 988 $

I164

-$
8750m

242828

105 430

2647142 4A 152 1117828 4 659 282209 345 684 215

243285

15/4 452

243285

1.514452

6.586968

17?2317

4611312 . 975 656

1 t?2 317

1 965 602

4.573,344 t '0,152 I 2,662 280 t 4,820,657 I 2.659,871

15A4412 4611312 1 975 6a6 14497 422

Tle noles to the financial statements are an inlegral parl ol lhis statemenl

ROILAN IORO & CO., CSP Ceiilied Public Accot&tants an.l Business Co suhants
PO BOX 1043 YAUCO PR 00698 3043 . TEL. (787) 856-6220 FAX: (787) 856-6233
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Municipality of San Sebasti6n

Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances

Govern mental Fu nds

Forthe Year Ended June 30,2010

G€nelal Sead

Starl

Debt

Oher Totd

Gov&nmold covrfi Enlrl
Fuds Fundi

Charges br s€rvrces

Fe&ral granl and cortbutcns

SEEconhbuhs

lnbrEsl, ir€a and psE[es

Expeidibrg3

Curent

&nerd govemlDnt

PubhsrblI

Orl!re

H€lt md rdbrc
Cagtloul4

lnbresl and ofter darges

Acess {deloenc}l olievenrcs over

Onn finaffing ioulte. {$e.}
Eondsad mEs

Tranrb6 h

Trambls oul

Toblol'er lmrong soulce6 (ues)

l{etdange h lnd bahnoes

3872.213 i
1762.0,6

629.237

5,629.676

437 2S

228270

570 998

2$2442

1.311415 $

509,96€

1987

1081871

2 994 690

2410 678

184 079

51836.44

1 762 043

2151U2

629 297

5 826.732

8 M0354

437.296

2n257

763.077

13137814 2$2442 I 823 370 7 271321 25 064 547

7.310 981

1.060 808

2.821528

327 5n
368 732

925 081 2532442

28636

1 838 900

99782

3013631

1424

2501441

1226161

7 369.617

1.160590

5,838166

327 525

370152

6,258 564

3,065 061

1325,000

674.993

26,389.672

1 325 000

674 993

r2817659 2 832 042 1 999 993 1867536 6842442

290r55

258756

(176623)

497 365

(1867536)

5.275 m0

11325125)

5 275 000

790 548

428879

v 421

(497S51 (1.259)

(2386G) 496106 5275m0 (2s7497) s 275.000

(2919241 (7s0548)

51 546 319483 3 407 464 171J82 3 94S.875

6147147

$ 10m7022
Fund babnce (deldl) be!fli ig-as rcsld

The notis to lhe fnancial statements are an inlegral parl of this statement

ROMAN TORO & CO., CSP Certilie.l Publit Accomtantsand Busin.ss Consuhants

PO BOx 3043 YAUCO PR 00698-3043 . TEL. (787) 856-622A FAX: 1787) 856 6233
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COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO
MUNICIPALITY OF SAN SEBASTIAN

RECONCILIATION OF THE GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS EALANCE SHEET
TO THE STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30,2()1O

TOTAL FUND BALANCES- GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS (pAGE 17).......................,...,....

Amounts reported for Govemmental Activities in the Statement of Net Assets arc different because:

CapitalAssels used in govenmental activities are not linancial resources and lherefore, are
not reported in the funds. ln lhe cunenl peiod, these amounls are:

$ 10,097,022

N0nDepreciab|eCapita|Assets............................................................... $ 7,724,661
lnfrasvuclure 4sseh........ 12J58p25
Other Depreciable Capital Asseb............................. 44,273,573
lmpairlnents..................... (929,173)

Accumulated Depreciation (15.529.f66)

Tolal Capital Asseb......... 47,698,724

Bonds and notes payable are reported in the funds when principal payments are due, but are
reported in the govemmental activities when fie debt is jncuned:.......................-.............. 875,000

Some liabilities are not due and payable in the curent peiod and therefore, are not reported
in the tunds. Those liabilities consist of:

GeneralBondsandNotesPayable........................... {17,557,000)
Compensated Absences.. | 2,621,529)
Property Tax Debt - Law 42....................................... ( 980,046)
Property Tax Debt - Law 146.................................... ( 166,489)
LIMS Repayment Plan..... ( 94,046)
Claims afld Judgmenls.... ( 265,000)
Landfll Closure and Poslclosures Costs................ ( 261.344)

TotalLong-Termliabi|ities....................................... {21.945,454)

ToTAL ilET ASSETS OF GOVERNITENTAL ACTTVTTTES (PAGE 15) ......................,....... 910,725"42

See accompanying Noles to Basic FinancialStalements.

ROMAN TORO & CO., CSP Certilied Public Acco@ta ts arul Busnl.ss Cons lta ts
PO BOX 3013 YAUCO PR 00698 3043 . TEL. (787) 856 622A FLY: (787) 856-621J
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COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO
MUNICIPALITY OF SAN SEBASTIAN

RECONCILIATION OF THE STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES
IN FUND EALANCE OF GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS TO THE STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2O1O

NET CHANGE IN FUND BALAI{CES - TOTAL GOVERI,IMENTAL FUNDS (PAGE 17) $ 3,949,875

- Amounts reported for Govemmental Activities in the Statement of Activities are different because:

Govemmentalfunds report capitaloutlays as expenditures. However, in the Statement of

- Aclivities the cost of those assets is allocated over lheir estimated useful lives and reported
as depreciation expense. ln lhe cunent period, these amounts are:

_ Capital Assets Additions .... 3,686,853
Depreciation Expense...... {1.677.057)

Excess ofCapitalAssets Additions over Depreciation Expense....... 2,009,796

- lmpairment reported in the Statement ofActivities do not require the use ofcurrenl financial
resources and therefore, are not reported as expenditures in the govemmental funds. . .... (929, 1 73)

_ Disposal of capihl assets require removal of cost ol lhe capital assets from the capilal asset
account on lhe Statement of Net Assets, resulting in a loss on disposal of capital assets on
the Statement of Activities 127 ,621)

- Repaymenl ofcurcnt portion of bonds and notes payable are reported as expenditures in
lie funds, but he repayment reduces Long-Term Liabilities in the Statement of Net Assetsr 875,000

- Debt proceeds provide current fnancial rcsources to governmental fu nds, but issuing debt
increases long- term liabilities in lhe Statement of Net Asseb. ln the curent period,

ftese amounls are:

_ Bonds and Notes Payable.. (5,275,000)

Repayment of long{erm principalis expenditure in the govemmental funds, butthe repayment
reduces Long-Tem Liabilities in the Statementof Net Assets. ln the cunent year,lhe

- rePayments were:

Bonds and Noles..-........... 1,325,000
Propedy Tax Debt - Law 42....................................... 19,709

- Propery Tax Debt - Law 146....................................... 7,568
Estimated Landfll Closure and

Post-closure Carc Cost.... 14,052
ompensated absences.... 51,506

Ll[,lS Repaymenl Plao..... 58.257

TotalAdditionalExpendilures................................... '1.476.092

CHANGE tN NET ASSEIS OF GOVERNMENTAL ACTtVtTtES (PAGE 15)...................... $ 2,0?8.969

See accompanying Notes to Basic Financial Stalements.
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COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO

MUNICIPALITY OF SAN SEBASTIAN

STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS
PROPIETARY FUND- VILLA SOIGAL PROJECT

JUNE 30, 201O

ASSETS:

CufianlAssets:
Cash

lccounb recei\ables

Miscellaneous prepaid expenses

T otal c urent asseh

Resfrcted Asseb:

ReslicEdcash

CapiblAssets:

Land

Building and oher depeciable asseb, net of accumulabd deprecralion

Totalcapitalassets

0herasseb

ToLlA8lols

LIABILITIES:

CunenlLiabilities:

lrorqagepaFble
,accouns payable- 30 dals

Iccrued liabililies

TenanlsecudtydepoSB

Total curent liabililies

Non+urcntliabilites:
Mo(agepaFble

Toblliabilities

I,IET ASSEIS

ln€ded in CapiblAsseb, NetofRelatsd Debt

Resticbd deposib

Unresticbd

81,892

1,480

3.560

86 932

452.660

58 350

1 .444 851

1 503,201

17.554

2,060 347

87,651

10,150

16,605

13,093

127 499

959,322

1,086,821

456,228

452,660

64.638

Toh netassets

Toial Liabililies and tletAssets

973 526

2,060 347

See ac{ompanying notes lo basic llnancial statements

ROM4N TORO & CO., CSP Ce,lified Public Acco*ttants a d Business Ansuhants
PO BOX 3043 YAUCO PR 00698-3043 . TEL.1787)856 6220 FAx: (787) 856-6233
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COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO
MUNICIPALIW OF SAN SEBASTIAN

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND CHANGES
IN FUND NETASSETS

PROPIETARY FUND - VILLA SOIGAL PROJECT

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2O1()

REIENUES

Rent

0lher

Totalrc\enues

EXPENSES

Idm inishali\e

Utlilies

Operating and mainbnance

Taxesand insurance

Deprecialion

Fohlexpenses

Operaiing income

iloN oPERATtiIG RE\iE UES (EXPEI{SES)

lobrest rccei,€d

lnlereston morlgage

Tolal non operaling re\enues (expenses)

|let Change in tlet A86ets

Nel Asseb, Begin ning of Year, as restated

NETASSETS, ENDOF YEAR

See accompanying notes lo basic financial statemenls

ROMAN TORO & CO., CSP Celiled Public Acco@ta ts dnd Business Consuhants
Po ROx )041 YAUCO PR 00698 3043 . TEL. (787) 8s6-6rA FAX: 087) 856-6233

597,668

1,260

598,928

156,992

20,852

172,136

47,996

148,700

546,676

52,252

9.066

(75,482)

(66,416)

(14,164)

987 690

973,526
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COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO
MUNICIPALITY OF SAN SEBASTIAN

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

PROPIETARY FUND - VILLA SOIGAL PROJECT

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2()1()

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTI\4TIES

Cash rcceiwd from tenanlsand HUD

ofiea cash receiled

$ 598893

1,260

600.153

ldm inistali,,e

l\,lanagement bes

Salaries and wages

Utlites

Operatng and mainbnance

Miscellaneous taxes and insurance

Netcash prclided byoperatng acliites

CASTI FLOW FROM CAPITAL AIID RELATED

FINAI{CIIIG ACTIVTIES

lnbresl paid in capibl debt

It orlgage pincipal paynent

Purchase of capibl asseb

Netcash used in capilaland relabd financing acli,ilies

CASiH FLOWS FROM IN\ESTING ACTII/ITIES

Deposib b rcsenie lor replacement and inbresl rchined in accounl

Whdlawd lrom aeser\€ for replacemenl

lnbrcston in\Estnent

Deposib b and inbrest eamed and rclained fu insurance escrow

Wtdrawal from insurance account

Nel cash proided by in'asling acljutes

Net incEase in cash

Cash at beginning of lear

Cash al end of year

(42,599)

(48,960)

{114,976)
(20,852)

(126,889)

(44,969)

(399,245)

200,908

(76,042)

(83,897)

(35,270)

(195,209)

(35,262)

9,066

(30,351)

56,625

5,371

11,070

70,822

81,892

ROMANTORO & CO
PO ROX ]043 YAUCO PR

CSP CeniJied Public Accontants anl Business Consuhakts
40698-344 . TEL. (787) 856 6L0 FILX. (787) 856-62)J
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COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO

MUNICIPALIW OF SAN SEBASTIAN

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

PROPIETARY FUI'ID -VILLA SOIGAL PROJECT

FOR THE FISCALYEAR ENDED JUNE 30,2OIO

RECONCILIATIOI{ OF OPERATING lNCOilE TO

CASH FLOWS FROI' OPERATING ACTIVITIES

0pera[nglncome

ldjustnenl b reconcilechange ln nel asseb lo

netcash provided byope6ling actvilies:

Depreciaton

(lncrease) decrease in:

Receivables

Misae laneous p@pa d expenses

Tenanlsecuitydeposib

lncrease (decease) in:

Accounb paFble- 30 days

Payroll

Tenantsecurilydeposlls

$ 52,252

148,6S8

1,225

2,49S

(326)

(5,359)

1,592

148656

Net cash provded by operatng acli\,ilies s 200.908

See accompanying notes to basic financial staiemeflts

ROMAN TqRO & CO.. CSP CeniJied P hli. Accot tants and Business Consuhants
po Rox J043 YAUCO PR 00698 3A43 . TEL (787) 856-622A FLY. 087) 856-6233
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COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO

MUNICIPALITY OF SAN SEBASTIAN

NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2OIO

NOTE 1 . SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The Municipality of San Seba6tian, Puerto Rico (lrunicipality) is a local govemment with tull legislative, fiscal and

administrative power to operate as a govemment under Law No. 81 of August 30, 1991, as amended, known as the

Autononous Municipalv Act of the Connonwealth of Pueto Rico (Law No. 81).

The l\rlunicipality's govemmental system consists of execulive and legislative branches. Tle Constitution of the Commonwealth

of Puerto Rico (the 'Commonwealth') provides for the separation of powers of the execuiive, legislaiive and judicial branches.

A lt4ayor, elected every four years by tle citizens, exercises the executive power of the Municipality. The legislalive power is

exercised by the Municipal Legislaturc, composed of sixteen members, which are also elected in lhe general electiolls every

four years. The GeneralJustic€ Court System of the Commonweallh, which has jurisdiction over the lrunicipality, exercises the
judiciary power.

The i.4unicipality assumes respo[sibility lor providing services to its cilizens related to public housing, welfare, public safely,

health, sanitation, educatjon, culture, recreation, uftan development, and many othergeneraland administrative duties.

The accouniing policies of the ltlunicipality conform to accounting principles generally accepted in dre United States ofAmerica

as applicable to govemmental units. The following is a 3ummary ofthe more signifcant policies.

The accompanying basic financial statemenE of the lrunicipality have been prepared in conformity with accountng principles

generally accepted in lhe United States of Ame ca (GAAP) as prescribed by the Govemmental Accounting Standards Board

(GASB). The GASB is the standard-setting body for governmental accouoting and fnancial reportng. The GASB periodically

updates its codilication of the existiflg Govemmenlal Accounling and Financial Reporting Standards which, along with

subsequent GASB pronouncements (Statements and lnlelpretatio0s) constitutes GMP for govemmental units

l0 June 1999, GASB issued Statement No. 34, 8as,c Financial Stdenents - atd Managenent's Discussion and Analysis - bt
State and Local Governnenls (GASB No. 34). This stalemenl established new inancial reporting requirements for state and

local govemments. On July 1, 2003, the l\,lunicipatity adopted the provisions of GASB No. 34 as well as other stalements

referred to below.

The accompanying basic inancial statements present the finaflcial position and the results of operations of lhe lrunicipality and

its various funds and fuod types. The basic fflancial slatements arc presented as of June 30, 2010, and fol the fiscal year then

ended. The more signilicant of these accounting policies are desc.ibed below and, where appropriate, subsequent

pronouncemenls will be refercnced.

Accordinq to the new fnancial reporting model established by GASB No. 34, be minimum required ,inancial statement

presentation applicable to the lrunicipalily is composed of the lollowing elements: (1) government-wide linancial statements

(GWFS), (2) governmental tund inancial statements {GFFS), (3) noles to basic inancial shtements, and (4) required

supplementary infomalion {RSl).

The required supplementary information, which consists of a management discussion and analysis (I,D&A), is infomation

presenled along with, bul separate from, the Municipality's basic linancial stalements. The [,lD8A is a narative report that

intrcduces the accompanying basic financial slatements and provides an analytical overview of lhe Municipality's ,inancial

activities fot the year ended June 30, 2010, based on the l\.lunicipality's knowledge of the lransactions, evenls and conditions

reflected in the basic iinancial statements. The l\4D&A also highlights certain key fiscal policies that control the l,lunicipality's

operations.

ROMAN TORO &CO . CSP Cetliied Public Accomtants and Business Consultant!

POROX3043 YAUCOPR t 698-3041 ' TEL. (787) 856'6220 FAX: i87) 856'6233



COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO

MUNICIPALITY OF SAN SEBASTIAN

NOTES TO THE BASIC FINAiICIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30,2l)1()

NOTE't - SUMMARY OF S|GN|F|CANT ACCOUNTTNG POLtCtES (CONTTNUED)

As p.eviously mentioned, on July 1, 2003, other statements and i0teryretatio0s werc also adopted in conjunction and

simultaneously with GASB N0.3,4. Those statements and interpretalions are: (1) GASB Slatement No. 33 - Accounalng ard
Financial Repoiing lot Nonexchange Transaclions, (2) GASB Statement No. 37 - Basic Financial Statenents - and

Managenent's Discussion and Analysis - for Stde and Local Govennents: Onn;bus, (3) GASB Statement No. 38 - C6la,h
Financial Statenent Nole D,sc/osures and (4) GASB lnterpretation No. 6 - Recogrition and Measuenenl of Celain Liabifiies
and Expenditwes in Govemn tal Fund Financial Statements.

GASB No. ?,4 also requi.ed that the accounting for all govemmentalactivities reported in the GWFS be based on applicable

prcnouncements issued by $e Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) and its predecessor bodies, such as the

Accounting Principles Boad (APB), issued on or before November 30, 1989, provided those pronouncements do not coniict
with or contradict GASB pronouncements. Accordingly, in coniunction afld simultarcously with the adoplion ofGASB No.34,

lhe lvlunicipality also adopted the following pronouncements: (1)APB Opinion No.20 - Accounting c,anges, {2) APB Opinion

No.21 - lntercst on Receivables and Payables, (3) FASB Statement No. 5 - Accounling fot Contingercres and (4) FASB

Statement No. 16 - Ptiu Penod Adjustnerts. The Municipality has elected to not apply all statements and interyretalions

isSued by FASB after November 30, 1989.

A. FIT,IANCIAL REPORTING ENTIW

The accompanying basic fnancial statements include all deparlmenls and organizations units whose funds are unde. lhe

custody and control of tlte Municipality. ln evaluating $e Municipality as a reporting entity, management has addressed all the

potential component units. The decision to include a potential component unit in the reporting entity was made by applying the

provisions ofGASBS No. 14.

The basic criteria for including a potential component unitwithin the reporting entity is if potential component units are financially

accountable and olhet organizalions for which the nature and significance of lheir reialionship with the entity are such lhat

exclusion would cause lhe Municipality's fnancial statements to be misleading or incomplete. The GASB has set forih crileria to

be considered in determining financial accountability. These criteria include appointing a voting majority of an organization's

governing body and (1)abiljty ofthe lilunicipality to impose its willon that organization or (2)the pobnnalforlhe organization to

provide specilic financial beneits to, or impose speciic financial burdens on the Municipality.

The relative importance of each criterion must be evaluated in light of speciric circumslances in order to determioe which

components units are to be included as part of lhe reporting entity. Our specmc evaluatjons of the criteria applicable to the

Municipality indicate no organizations meet the crite a to be included as componenl units. Accordingly, these basic financial

statements presentonly the Municipality asthe reporting entity.

These fnancial statements present the rcspective fnancial position of lhe govemmental activities, each major fund, and the

aggregate remaining fund informalion ofthe Municipality, as of June 30, 2010, and the rcspective changes in fnancial position,

where applicable, thereoffor the fiscalyear then ended.

ROIL{N TORO & Co., CSP CetiJied Public Atco@tants t)nd Business Co sultants
po Box 3043 YA{JCO PR 0069&3013 . TEL. t787) 856 20 FAX: (787) 856 6233
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COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO
MUNICIPALITY OF SAN SEBASTIAN

NOTES TO THE BASIC FITIANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30,2O1O

tioTE 1-SUMMARY OF S|GN|F|CANT ACCOUNTTNG POL|CTES (CONTTNUED)

B. iIEASUREMENT FOCUS AND BASIS OF ACCOUNTIT{G

GOVERNMETIT.II/IOE FINANCIAL STATEiTENTS

The governmenlwide financial statemenls (the Slatemenl of Net Assels and the Statemenl of Activities) are repoded using the
economic rcsources measuremenl focus and the accrual basis of accounting. Revenue is recorded when earned and expenses are
recorded when a liability is incurred, rcgardless oflhe timing of related cash flows. Grant and similar ilems are recognized as revenue
as soon as alleliglbilily requiremenls have been mel.

GOVERNIENTAL FUND FINANCIAL STATEMETTS

The govemmenlalfund linancial statements are rcporled using lhe currenl linancial resources measurcment focus and the modified
accrual basis of accounting. Revenues arc recorded when susceplible to accrual; as soon as il is both measurable and available.
"Availabb' means colleclible within the currenl pe od or soon enough lhereafter, nonnally within sixty (60) days to be used to pay
liabilities oflhe curenl period. Expendilures are genemlly recognized when the related liability is incuned.

The exception lo lhis generalrule is the principaland intereston general obiigalron longlerm debtand compensated absences, ifany.
arc rccognlzed when due.

ln applying lhe "susceplible lo accrual' concepl lo intergovernmenlal revenues (federal grants) pursuant to GASBS No. 33,
Accounting and Financial Repoling for Nonexchange Irarsactlors (the l/unicipality may act as either provider or recipient), the
prcvider should recognize liabiiilies and expenses and the rccipient should recognize receivables and revenue wfien the applicable
eligibility requirements including time rcquirements, are mel. Resources lransmitted belore lhe eliglbillty requiremenls are met should,
under mosl circumstances. be reponed as advances bythe providerand delened revenue by lhe recipient.

There are essentially lwo types of revenue. For some granls, funds must be expended by lhe lt4unicipality on the specilic purpose or
project beforc anyamounls wlllbe reimbursed. Revenue is, therefoae, recognized as expenditures are incuned lo the extent available.
For the other revenue, moneys are vlnually unresldcted and are generally rcvocable only for failure lo comply with prescribed

compliance requiremenls. These resources are reflected as revenue al the time of receipt or earlier f lhe susceptible to accrual
crile a is mel.

Expendilures are generally recorded when a liability is incuffed, as under accrual accounling. Iuodilicalions lo lhe accrual basis of
accounting include the following:

.:. Employee's vested annual vacalion and sick leave is recorded as expenditure vr,hen utillzed. The amounl of accumulaled annlal
vacalion and sick leave unpaid al June 30, 2010, has been reported only in the governmenlwide iinancial slalemenls.

C, FINANCIALSTAIEMEXTPRESENTATION

The basic financial stalemenls include bolh governmenlwide (based on the Municipality as a wtole) and fund financial slalemenls.
While lhe previous flnancial reporling model emphasized fund types (the lotal of all funds of a particular type), in lhe new linancial
model the focus is on either the Munlcipalily as a vrhole, or major individual funds {wilhin lhe basic tinancial slalemenls) Both the
government-wide and flnd flnancial stalements (wilhin the basic financial slalemenls) calegorize primary aclivilies as either
governmenlal or business lype.

ROM,IN TORO & CO., CSP Ce ilied Public Accontakts a d Business ConsuLants
PO ROX 3043 YAUCO PR 00698-3043 . TEL. (787) 856-6220 F.4X: 1787) 856-6233 26



COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO

MUiIICIPALITY OF SAN SEBASTIAN

NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2O1O

NOTE I - SUMMARY OF S|GN|F|CANT ACCoUNTTNG POLICIES (CONTINUED)

C. FINANCIAL STATEMENT PRESENTATION (CONTINUED)

- 
GOVERNMENT.WDEFINANCIALSTATEMENTS

The governmenlwide fnancial stalements (the Stalement of Nel Assets aod the Statement of Activities) report information of all

lhe aciivilies of the Municipality. For most part, the effect of inlerfund activity has been removed from these govemmenlwide

- fnancial statements. Governmental activities, which normally are supported by taxes and inlergovernmenlal reve0ues, are

reported separately from business-type activities, which rely to a signilicant extent on fees and charges forsupporl.

- The focus of the Statement of Net Assels is designed to be similar to botum line resulls fff lhe Municipality and its

govemmental activities. This statement, for the first time, combines and coosolidales governmental fund's cunent financial

resources (short-tem expendable resources)with capital assets and long'term obligalions

The Statement of NetAssets presents lhe reporting entities'assets and liabililies, with the difference reported as net assets. Net

assets are reported in lhree categoriesi

- , lnvested in Caoital Assets. Net ol Related Debt - These consists of capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation and

amortization, and reduced by outstanding balances for bonds, notes, and other debl hat are attributed to the acquisition,

_ construction, or improvement of those assets.

t R8tricted Net Assets - These results when constraints are placed on net assets use, which can be either extemally

imposed by creditors, grantors, contributors, and the like, or imposed by law lhrcugh constitutional provisions or enabling

- legislation.

.4. unrestricted Net Assets - These consists of net assets which do nol meet the definilion of lhe two preceding categories.

- Unreslricted net assels often are designated, lo indicate that management does not considel them to be available for

general operations. Unrestricted nel assets often have conslraints on r$ources that are imposed by management, but can

be removed or modified.

When both restricted and unrestricted resources are available for use, generally it is the l!y'unicipality's policy to use restricted

Iesources first, then the unrestricted resources as they are needed.

- The Statement of Activities is focused on both lhe gross and net costs per functional category. The statement reduces gross

expenses (including depreciation) by related prcgram revenues, operating and capital grants. This is intended to summarize and

_ simplify the user's analysis of cost ofvarjous govemmentalservices.

GOVERNMENTAL FUND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

- The fund inancial statements (the Balance Sheet and the Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund

Balances) are, in substance, very similar lo the fnancial statements presented in lhe previous financial reporting model.

_ 
Emphasis here is on the majorfunds in the governmental category. Non-maior funds are summa zed into a single column.

ROlut" TORO & Co., CSP Ce iJied Publit Acco0tants an.l Busi ess Cotlsuhants
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COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO

MUNICIPALITY OF SAN SEBASTIAN

NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30,2OIO

NOTE't - SUMMARY OF SlGNlFlCAtlT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

C. FINANCIAL STATEMENT PRESENTATION (CONTINUED)

Traditional users of govemmental fnancial statements will fnd the Fund Financial Statements presentation more lamiliar. The

focus is on l\y'ajor Funds, ra$er than the previous linancial model's fund types. The Governmental l\,lajor Fund Statemeflts are

presented on cu rrent financial resou rces and modifred accrual basis ofaccolnting.

This is the manner in which lhese funds are normally budgeted. This presentation deemed most appropriate to (a)demonstrate

legal and covenant compliance, (b) demonstrate lhe source and use ol liquid lesources, and (c) demonstrale how the

Municipality's actual expeienc€ conforms to the budgeted fiscal plan.

Since the governmental fund slatemeflls are presented in a different measurement focus and basis of accouflting than the

govemment-wide statements, reconcilialion is presented and a separate explanation foreach differences.

The [,4uoicipality reports its fnancial position (Balance Sheet) and results of operations (Statemenl of Revenues, Expenditures

and Changes in Fund Balance) in funds, which are considercd separate accounting entities. The operations of each fund are

accounted for wilhin a set of self-balancing accounts. Fund accounting segregates funds according to lheir intended purpose

and is used to aid maoagement in demonstrating compliance with legal, inancial' and conlractual prcvisions.

The nev, model as defned in GASBS No. 34 established criteria (percentage oI lhe assets, liabilities, revenues, or

expenditu.es/expenses of eilher fund category in lhe governmental fund) for the determination of major funds. The non-majol

fu0ds are combined in a single column in the fund financial statemenls. The Mun icipality .eports the following maiorfunds:

General Fund - This is the general operating fund ol the i,4unicipality. lt is used to accounl for all financial rcsources,

except lhose required to be accounted for in anotherfund.

EBdrqElLEUd - This is lhe fund used to account for all lransactions of lhe Head Siart Program. The objectives of

iiE prog.rn ,ore to proride comprehensive health, educational, nutritional, social and other developmental services

primirili to economically disadvantaged pre-school children and infants and toddlers so that the children will atiain

schoolreadiness.

Debt service Fund - This is the fund used to account for the accumulation of resources for and the payment of,

general long-term debt principal, intelest, and related cosls.

Loans Fund - This is the fund used to account for all financial resources and transactions relaled to the loans for

.o*i ion prrpo.". and capital outlays of the Municipality' which is fnanced by loans from lhe Government

Development Bank of Puerto Rico.

GASBS No. 34 eliminates the presentation ofAccount Groups, but provides forthese records to be mainlained and incorporates

the information into lhe Govemmental column in the Govemmenlwide Slatementof NetAsseb.

ROMAN TORO & CO., CSP Ceiifed Public Accodants and Busi ess Consuhants
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NOTE I - SUMMARY OF SIGI{IFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

D. FINANCIALREPORTINGPRESENTATION

The accounts oflhe l\,,lunicipality are organized on lhe basis offunds, each if which is considered a separate accounting entity.

The operations of each fund are accounted for with a separate set of self-balancing accounts that comprise its assets, liabilities,

fund equity, revenues, and expenditules. Fund types are as followsi

General Fund - ls the general opemling fund ol the Municipality. lt is used lo accounl for all govemmental activity,

exceptthose required to be accounted for in anotherfund

Special Revenue Fund- This is he fund used to account for rcvenues derived lrom local funds, state grants or other

ricted revenue sources. The uses and limitalions ol each special revenue fund are specified by [,,lunicipality

ordinances or llate siatutes.

Debt service Fund - This is the fund used to accounl for the accumulation of resources for and the payment of,

general long-term debt principal, interest, and related cosis.

Capilal Proiects Fund - This is the fund used to accounl for financial resources used {or the acquisition or

**tnction ot *ior capital facilities. The uses and limitatiofls of each capital projects fund are specified by

It4unicipality ordinances or state statules.

E, BUDGETARY DATA

The lrunicipality annualy adopts the Budget Resolltion for all operating tunds ol the lrunicipality except for cerlain rcst cted

accounts oi proprietary 
'Funds 

and Special Revenue Funds. Budgetary control is legally maintained at the fund level The

budget is prepared using the modilied accrualbasis of accounling with encumbrance included as budgelary basis expenditures.

Th;[,,luni;ip;lity's Budg;t Resotution provides transfer althority (1) to the l\y'ayor and the ltlanagement and Budget Director,

within and between departmeflts and tunds, as long as fie lotal budget ol the l\,'lunicipality (net of intefund lransfers) is not

increased; iZ) io the l,4;nagement and Budget Director to implemeflt grant budgets as lhe grant applications are accepted by

the irunicipaiity; and (3) tofie Management and Budget Director to amend (re-appropriate) each new yeais budget, to the

extent of outstinding encumbrances, and/or unexpended prciecugrant appropdations at year end. l,,lunicipality's Legislature

action is required for (1) use of tte budgeted Legislature contingency, a0d {2) lhe approval of supplemental appropriations

Dudng the year, several supplemental apprcpriations wele necessary.

The budget columns (original and fnal budgets) of the Bldgetary comparison - General Fund reflect lhe oiginal budget and

the ame-nded bldget (w-hich have been adjusted lor legally authorized revisions of lhe annual budgels during the yea0

Appropriations, exipt iemaining project appiopriations, encumbrances, and unexpended grant approp ations, lapse at the end

of each liscal year.

Amendments to the budget, including transfers, require the approvalof the MunicipalLegislature. Unencumbered appropdations

lapse at the end ol the n;xt fscal ye;r. The Municipality follows these prccedures, in accordance with law, i0 order to establish

lhe budgetary data rciected in the basic inancial statements:

1. P oroll\4ay 31 of each fscalyear, he l\y'ayor submits to the Municipal Legislature a proposed budget lor the fiscal year

commencing the following July 1 in addition of a budgel inessage;
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COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO

MUNICIPALITY OF SAN SEBASTIAN

NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONIINUED)

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2O1O

NoTE I - SUMMARYOF S|GN|F|CANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CotlrlNUED)

- E. BUDGETARY DATA (CONTINUED)

- 
,. The budget document is available for public inspection prior to its approval by the Municipal Legislature;

3. The Commissioner of l\,4unicipal Affairs examines $e budget to vedfy if it complied wih the law's standards and sends it b
the l\,layor fol any comments or recommendation before the limited date eslablishes by the Law;

4. Prior to June 13, $e annualbudget is legally enacted lhrough passage ofthe annualappropriation ordinance;

- 5. lf a budget is not adopted p or to lhe end ol the end of lhe fscal year, he annual budget for he preceding fscal year, as

approved by lhe [rlunicipal Legislature and the Mayor, is automatically renewed for the ensuing is6l year until a new

budget is approved. This permits the Municipality to continue making payments lor its operating and other expenses unlil

_ the new budget is approved;

6. Subsequent to the enactment of the annual appropriation odinance, lhe Municipal Legislatule has the authority to make

necessary amendmenls made during tle fscal year and are reiected in the budget information included in the Budgetary

- Compa son Schedule - GeneEl Fund;

7, Budgetary data for the Special Revenue Fufld has not been presented in the accompanying basic financial slatements as

- such funds are budgeted over the life of the respective granl or project and not on an ann ual basis.

Since he budgetary basis differs from accounting pdnciples generally accepled in the united States of Ame ca (GAAP), actual

- amounts for the General Fu0d in the accompanying Budgetary Comparison Schedule, is presented on the budgetary basis to

enhance comparability.

- The principal differences beMeen the budgetary and GAAP bases are the following:

l. Encumbrances are rccorded as expenditures under the budgetary basis and as a reserve offund balances ufldel GAAP.

- 2. The non€xonerated portion of lhe property tax advances are presenled as revenue in the budgetary basis and as other

fnancing sources under GMP.

- 3. lnterfund transactions oflhe Generaland Special Revenue Funds are not included in the budgetary basis.

4. Certain accrued liabilities and other debls are not included in the budgetary basis

5. Certain reveflues susceptible to accrual, i.e., both measurable and available, are not included in the budgetary data.

- All encumbrance appropriations in the operating budget lapse at the end of lhe tiscal year. Propedy hxes collected du ng lhe

current year by the l\runicipal Revenue Collectio0 Center (Fiscal Agent) are presented as revenues in the accountng basis but

_ 
are nol considered in the budgetary schedule.
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NOIE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING PoLICIES (CONTINUED)

E. BUDGETARY DATA (CONTINUED)

The specialfunds of lhe special Revenue Fund have nol been included in the budgetary comparison because balances are nol

budg;ted. Also, the budg;t prepared hr the Federal Finance Awards Programs included in the l,Iaior and Non l\.'lajor Funds is

bas;d on a program peiod which is not necessarily a year. Accodingly, ils not praciicalto present an annual comparison of

budget lor such programs.

F. CASH, CASH EQUIVALENT AND INVESTMENT

The Finance Director ol the Municipality is responsible for invesiing the available resources in certilicates ol deposit and other

short-term investments. lnvestmen6 are made from the available combined funds oflhe Municipality and, accordingly, it is not

plactical to disclose certificates of deposit and other short{erm investmenls individually by fund in the combined linancial

;tatements. lnterest eamed o0 certifrcaies of deposit aod olher shod-term investments are rccognized as revenue in the

Generat Fund. cash in the special Revenue, Debt service and capital Proiect Funds are restricted; accordingly, resources

available were not used for pool investments.

Under lhe laws and regulations of lhe Commonwealth, public funds deposited by the i,4unicipality in commercial banks must be

fulry collateralized lor ihe amounts deposited in excess of the fede6l depository insurance generaly provided by the Federal

Deposit lnsurance Corporation (FDiC). All securities pledged as collateral are held by ageflts designated by the

Commonwealth's Secretary of lhe Treasury, but not in the Municipality's name

cash with fscal agent represents property tax collections retained by the lrunicipal Revenues Collection center and

undisbursed proceeis of certain bonds, loans or grants which are maintained in a cash custodian account by the Government

Development Bank of the Commonwealth of Puerto Rico.

Cash balance recognized in the Debt Service Fund is restricted for the paymeni ofthe [,lunicipality's obligations, and others are

r"iiri"t"a to1. speci-lic projects, such as the acquisition or construction of permanent improvements. The sinking fund is

maintained by iie Governmental Development Bank of Puerto Rico, agency which acts as the insurer and payer ol the

Municipality's bonds and notes issued in accordance with law.

G. RECEIVABLES

Receivable are stated nel of estimated allowances for uncollectible accounts, which are determined upon past colleclion

experience and current economic coflditions. Receivable lrom Federal Government reprcsents amounts owed to the

l,ilunicipality for reimbursement of expend itures incurrcd pursuantto federally funded programs'

H. INVENTORIES

The General, Special Revenue and Capital Project Funds, purchases office and pdnting supplies, gasoline, oil and other

eifenaaUf suppties neU for consumption. The cost of purchases is recorded as expenditure in the appropriate fund and the

inventory is nol recorded in the basic linancial statements.
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COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO

MUNICIPALITY OF SAN SEBASTIAN

NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2OiO

NOTE I - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICAI'IT ACCoUNTII{G POLICIES (CONTINUED)

I. CAPITAL ASSETS

propedy, plant and equipment purchased or acquired is caried at histoical cost or estimated historical cost. Contdbuted assets

are recorded at fuir ;arkel vaiue as of fie date received. Other costs incurred for repairs and maintenance is expensed as

incuned.

Depreciation on allassets is provided on the straighuine basis over the following estimated usefullives:

Years

20-50
25-50
5-20
5-10

Capital Assets

Buildings and building improvemenls

lnfrastruciure
Vehicles and equipment
Fumilure and fixlures

J. LONG.TERMOBLIGATIONS

The liabilities repoded in the government-wide fnancial staiements included general and special obligation bonds and notes,

and other long{erm liabilities, ;uch as vacation, sick leave, litigation, long-term liabililies to other govemmental entities.

ln the fund financial slatements, govemmental fund types recognize bond issuances cost, during lhe current period The face

amount of debt issued is reporte-d as other fnancing sources, while bond issuance costs, whether or not withheld from lhe

actual debt proceeds received, arc reported as expenditures.

K. COMPENSATEDABSENCES

The Municipality accrues accumulated unpaid vacation and sick leave and associated employee-related cosE when earned (or

estimated to be eamed) by the employee. The lvlunicipality's employees are granted 30 days of vacatiofls and 18 days of sick

Lave annually. Vacations may be ac.umulated up to a maximum of siry (60) days and sick leave up to a maximum of ninety

(90) days. ln tE event of employee resignation, lhe employee is paid for accumulated vacalion days up to the maximum

allowed. Separation lrom employment prioi to use of all or part of the sick leave terminates all righls for compensation, except

for employe;s with ten years of;ervice who are entilled to sick leave pay up to the maximum allowed. The lt'lunicipality accrued

a liability forcompensated absences, which meetlhe following criteria:

l. The Municipality,s obligation relaiing to employee's ghts to receive compensation fol future absences is atlributable to

employee's services akeady rendered

2, The obligation relates to rights that vestor accumulate.

3. Payment ofthe compensation is probable.

4. The amountcan be rcasonably estimated.
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COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO

MUNICIPALITY OF SAN SEBASTIAN

NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEIIIENTS (CONTINUED)

FORTHE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30,2()1()

NOTE I - SUMTARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUiITING POLICIES (CoNTINUED)

K. COiTPENSATEDABSEtICES (COtlTlNUE0)

tn accordance wilh the above cdle a and requiremenls as eslablished by GASBS No. 16; the l',lunicipalily has accrued a liabllty for

compensaled absences, which has been eamed but not taken by Munlc pa ity's employees. Forthe governmenlwide statemenls, lhe

curenl poion is the amounl estimated to be used in the following year. For the govemmenlaL funds slalemenls all of the

compen;ated absences are considered long{em and lherefore, are not a fund liability and rcpresents a reconc ng item behveen the

fund level and govemmenl-wide presentations.

The folowing is a summary ofchanges in the balance of compensated Absences for the liscal year ended June 30, 2010

ROMLN IORO & CO' CSP Ce iled Pubtic Accotatants antl Business Consuhants
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BALAI.JCE

JULYl,2(lM

$ 2673.035

tiEw tssuEs

RETIREI'EIITS
AI{OCURREIIT

MATURATES

5 rffa.6l

BALAIICE
JUI{E 30.2010

$ i,621129

CURRETIT
PORTTO

L .

LONG.TERM

laBlls!

9 .

L. INSURANCE

The l!,4unicipality has insurance coverage for its publlc facililies, pimarily to provide protection lrom catastrcphic losses. Also, principal

ofllcials of ihe [4unicipality are covercd lnder va ous sureiy bonds. The Secreiary of the Treasury Department of the Crmmonwealth

of puerto Rico is the agent commissioned to place allo, the l\.iunicipality s insurance coverage. Coresponding premiums payable arc

withheld by the Municipat Revenue Collection Cenler from quarle y advances of annual property tax and subsidy send to the

[4unicipality.

M. INTERFUT{DTRANSACTIONS

lnterfund transaclions are reflecled as loans, rcimbuEemenls or lransfers. Loans are €porled as rcceivables and payables as

appropriale and are subject to elimination upon consolidation. Reimbursemenls occul when one fund incu6 a cost, charges lhe

apprcp ate benefting fu;d and rcduces its relaled cosl as a reimbursement All other inlerfund lansaclions are trcated as lransfers.

Tiansiers between governmental or proprietary funds are netted as pad of the reconciliation to the govemmenl-wide columnar

presentalion. The ilunicipalily has thelollowing lypes of reciprocaland nonreciprocal interfund activilies:

* lmedund loans - Represent amounts provided wilh a rcqllrcmentfor repayrnenl, which are recorded as "duefrom" in the lender

gorernrnentat trnO anO "Oue to" in the borower govenmenlal fund. lniedund receivables which arc nol considered currently

;vaihbb iinancial rcsources, are rcporled as advances. For amounts nol expected to be collected wilhin a reasonable period,

interfund receivables/payables are Gduced to the eslimaled rcalizable value and the amount thal ls not expecled 1o be repald is

reported as a lransfelfrcmlhe governmental fund that madethe loan.

.:. lntertund kansfers , Reprcsenl flows of assets (permanenl reallocalion of flnancial resollrces arnong governmenial funds)

wiltoul eq,:ivatent no*s ot assels in retum and without a requircment for repayment Transfers are repoded as other iinancing

uses la lhe governmental fund making lrcnsfers and as olherlinancing sources in the govemmentalfund receiving lransfeIs.

t lnlefund reimbursements Represenl repayments frcm the govemmental fund responsible fo[ padicular expendilures or

expenses to lhe govern mental lund that initially paid forthem



COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO

MUNICIPALITY OF SAN SEBASTIAN

NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

FOR THE FISCALYEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2O1()

NOTE I - SUMMARY OF SlGl,llFlCANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

N. RESERVATIONS OF FUND BALANCE - GOVERMENTAL FUNDS

Reseryations of fund balance in the fund fnancial statements rcpresent portions offund balances lhat are legally segregated for

specifc future use or are notappropdated forexpenditure. The Municipality has the fotlowing leservations offund balance:

.:. Encumbrances - Reprcsent future expenditures undet purchase oders, @ntracb and other commitments. These

committed amounts generally willbecome liabilities in future periods as lhe goods olseryices are re@ived.

.t Debt Service Fund - Represents net assets available to finance future debt service payments. The govemmental fund

fn.ancial stalements present fund balance reserves for those portions ol fund balance (1) not available for appropriation for

expenditures or (2) legally segregated lor a specilic future use. The reseNes for related assets such as inventories and

prepayment! ale examples of the former.

, Oher purposes - Represents net assets available for specmc use and/or legally segregated forother specifc future use.

O. CLAIMS AND JUDGMENTS

The estimaled amou0t of the liability for claims a0d judgments, if any, which is dle on demand, such as from adiudicated or

setted claims, is recorded in lhe General Fund. The Long-Term Liabilities includes an amount estimated as a contingent liability

or liabilities with a lixed or expected due date, which willrequire future available linancialresources for its payment.

P. USE OF ESTIMATES

The preparatiofl of the basic fnancial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the lJnited

States oi Amedca requires management to make esiimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and

liabilities and disclosures of contingent assets and liabililies at the date ol lhe basic financial statemenls and the reported

reveflue and expenses during the reporting period Actual result could differ from those estimales.

Q. ACCOUNTING FOR PENSION COSTS

For he purpose ol applying lhe requirements of GASB Statement No.27, Accwnting for Pensions by state and Local

Govenient Enployers IGASB No. 27), the state govemment of lhe Commonwealth of Puerto Rico is considered to be the

sponsor of lhe Employees' Retirement System of lhe Government of Puerlo Rico and its lflstrumentalities (ERS) and System

2b00, a mu[i-employer cosfsharing defined be0eft pension plan and a hybrid defined conlribution plan, respectively , in which

$e emptoyees of the l\4unicipality participate. The [4unicipality is considered a participant and not a sponsor, of these retirement

system! since lhe majority of the parlicipants in the afo.ementioned pension trust funds are employees of lhe Commonwealth of

iuerto Rico and the basic linancial statements of such retirement systems are part of the fnancial reporting entity of the

Commo0wealth of Puerto Rico. Accordingly, no portion of the net pension obligation (NPO) related to ERS has been allocated

to $e lrunicipality in the accompanying basic financial statements. The basic fnancial slatements ol the Commonwealth of
puerto Rico ieport he total amount of the nel pension obligation of ERS, including any amounl that may conespond to the

[.4unicipality.
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NOTE I - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCoUNTING POLICIES (COiITINUED)

- o. AccouNTlNG FOR PENSION COSTS (CONTINUED)

The Nlunicipality accounts for pension costs lrom the slandpoini of a participanl in a multipleemployer cost-sharing plan.

- Accordingly, pension costs recognized in lhe accompanying basic fiflancial statements a.e equal to the statutorily required

contributions, with a liability recorded forany unpaid required conkibutions.

- R. RISK FINANCING

The lrunicipality cades @mmercial insurance to cover casualty, thefl, tort claims and other losses. lnsurance policies are

- negotiaied by the Puerto Rico Treasury Department and costs are allocated among allthe l\y'unicipalities of Puerto Rico.

Cost of insurance allocated to lhe Municipality and deducted from lhe gross property tax collections by the l,iunicipal Revenue

Collection Center ('CRl[4') for the year ended June 30, 2010 amounted to $415,108. The cuneut insurance policies have not

- been cancelled or terminated. The CRllu also deducted $321,206 for workers compensation insurance covering all municipal

employees.

- S. FUTURE ADOPTION OF ACCOUNTING PRONOUNCEMENTS

_ The GASB has issued the following accounting standards that have effective dates afler June 30, 2010:

.i GASB Statement No. 54, Fund Batance Repoting and Govennental Fund TWe Defrnitions. This statement changes the

classification and terminology of fund balances and amends the deinitions of the different types of governmental funds.

- This statement is effective for periods beginning after June 1 5, 201 0;

.i GASB Concepts Statements No. 5, Service Eforts ard Accanplishnents - an Anendnent of GASB Concepfs Sfatemerts

_ lvo. 2. This statement provides a framework to be used by the GASB in considering guidance fol repo ng SEA by state

and local governmental entities and ameflds terminology and other information in GASB: CS'2'

The [,,luflicipality's managemeflt has concluded lhat the future adoption of these GASB Statements do not have any impact 0n

- the Municipality's basic inancial statements.

- 
NOTE 2 - CASH AND CASH EOUIVALENTS

The Municipality maintains its deposits in vaious commercialbanks located in Puerto Rico and Government Development Bank

for puerto iiico (cDB). Proceeds from bonds and tunds related to certain grant awa.ds are rcquired by law to be held with

_ GDB.

The Municipatity adopted the provisions of GASB Statement No. 40 (GASB No. 40],, Deposit and lnvestnenf Risk Disciosure, an

- Anendneit to GASB Stafenenf No. 3. This slatemenl requires lhat state and local govemments disclose essential risk

information about deposits and investments. The disclosure rcquirements cover four main areas: (1) credit risk, (2) interest rate

risk, (3) custodial crcdit risk, (4)foreign exchange exposure.
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NOTE 2 - CASH AtlD CASH EoUIVALEi{TS (COXTINUED)

gE![UgE - This is the risk thal an issuer or other counterparty lo an inveslment will not fulfill its obligations. ln compliance with

G6EG6d regulations of the Commonwealth, ihe Mun cipality has adopted, as it's cuslodial and credit dsk policy, the Slatenert

ol lnvestnent Guidelines fot the Govennent af the Commonweafth of Pueio Rbo. Accordingly the lvunicipality invests only in

obligalions of the Commonwealh, obligations of the United Slales of America cedicates of deposils, commercial paper,

baniers acceplances, or in pools of obligations of ihe municipalities of Puerto Rico, which arc managed by GDB. Accord;ng t0

the aforementioned inveslmeni guldelines, the Munlcipality does nol nvest in malkelable secuilres or any types of investments

for which credit risk exposure m;y be signilicant Thercfore, the l.y'unicipality s managemenl has concluded thal lhe risk related to

any possible loss retated to defaults by commercial banks on the [,{unicipality s deposits is considered low at June 30, 2010

lnterest rate sk - This is the .isk that changes in interest rates of debt investments will adveGely affect the fair value of an

investne,,t Tl^,e [,,lunicipal]ly manages ils exposure to declines in fair values by: (1) not including debt inveslmenls in ils

investmenl portfolo at Ju;e 30,2010, (2)limiting the weighled average rnaturity of its investments lo lhree monlhs or less and (3)

keeping rno; of its bank deposits n interests bearing accounts generating inleresls al preva ing markel rates. Al June 30, 2010,

the 
'[,1; 

icipality's investments in certificates of deposils are recorded al cost, which approximates theirfair value Therefore, the

l!4unicipatii's rnanagement has concluded lhai al June 30 2010, the inlerest rate risk associated wilh the lvlun cipality's cash and

cash equivalenls is considercd low

Curtodial credit risk ln the case of deposils, this is lhe risk thal in the event of a bank failurc, the Municipality's deposits may

nol be ,ecorered. Pursuant to the Sratemenl of /nyestfient Guidetines fot the Governnent of the Connonwealth af Pueta Ricg

lhe balances deposited in commerclal ban ks by the Municipality are nsured by lhe Fedeal Deposit lnsurance Corporation (FD lC)

gene6Lly up 10 a maximum of$250,000 per depositor. ln addltion, publc f!nds deposited in commercial banks by the [,4unicipalily

ire fuly'securities ptedged as collateral are held, n lhe Municipalily's name. by the agents of the Commonweallh's Secrelary ol

Treasury. Deposits wrlh GDB are uninsured and uncollateralized. However, no losses rclated lo defaults by GDB on deposit

transactions iave been incurrcd by the [,luni.ipality through June 30, 2010. Thereforc, lhe l,,4unic]pallty's managemenl has

concluded that at June 30, 2010 the cuslodial credit isk associated wilh lhe [/unic pa]lty's msh and cash eqlivalenls is

considered low

Fociqn exchanqe dsk - The isk that changes in exchange rales will adversely affecl lhe value of an inveslment or a deposii.

,qccoirs to the alorerenlioned inveslment guidelines, the L.lunicipality is prevented frcm inv€sting in foreign securilies or any

other typ;s of investmenls in which foreign exahange risk exposure may be slgnillcant. Accordingly, managemenl has concluded

that th; foreign exchange rlsk related to the Municipalitys deposils is considered low at June 30, 2010'

The l!,4unicipa ly,s bank balances in commercial banks of $3,957,609 in the General Fund, $18,419 in lhe Head Slart Fund and

$1,093,257 in oiher governmentalfunds, were futty collateralized al June 30, 2010. The deposits al GDB of $2,601,401 in lhe Debl

6ervice Fund and th; $,4,820,657 in Loans Fund are unsecurcd and uncollaleralized, as no collatelal is rcqulred to be camed by

govemmenlal banks.

NOTE 3- RECEIVABLES

A. SALES AND USE TAXES RECEIVABLES

As described betow in Note 15, the l!4unicipal Legislature approved the lmposition of lhe municipal sales and use tax during liscal

year 2006-2007. tndividuals, organizations and entities subjecl to collecl lhe mwlclpal sales and use lax musl file a lax return to

ihe Municipality. Tax is due eaah 20r, day of each month based on lax collected in the preceding monlh. Therefore, sales tax

recelvable of $i61,374 ln the govern mental fund s represenls the amounl due by ihe taxpayers at June 30' 2010'
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COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO

MUNICIPALIW OF SAN SEBASTIAN

NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2()1()

NOTE 3- RECEIVABLES

B. PROPERTYTAXES RECEIVABLES

Property taxes receivable in lhe other govemmental funds represents debt service fund's advances lrom fscalyear 2009-

2010, not collected by the i,iunicipalily at June 30, 2010. Following is adetailofthe prcperty taxes receivablel

Governmenlal Enlity Amount

l\4unicipal Revenue Collection Center(CRlll)

Total

$ 21.021

t j1,oa

C. INTERGOVERNMENTALRECEIVABLES

At June 30, 2010, the [runicipality maintained an account receivable lrom he Puerto Rico Electric Power Authoity of

$7,082.

State government receivable in tle other govemmental funds represents expenditures incuned, not yet reimbursed by the

state agencies. Following is a detailofthe state government receivable:

Description Amount

State Department of Labo. Law I
State Department of Labor- Law 52

Total

$ 86,413

65.284

t 151.697

D, FEDERAL GRANTS RECEIVABLE

Federal grants receivable in the govemmental funds represent expenditures incurred, not yet reimbu6ed by the federal

agencies orthe pass-lhrough grantors. Follov/ing is a detailofthe federalgranls rcceivable:

Description Amount

Head Start
Public & lndian Housing

Community Developmenl Block Grant

Trafiic Safety Commission

Emergency Shelter Grant
Others

Total

$ 20,925

9,188
18,827

2,674
7,384
2.977

$ ,01i75

E. OTHERS ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE

Other receivables in the General Fund, for the amount of $12,060, represent accounts receivable at June 30, 2010, related to

fnes and penalties collected by the Municipality.
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NOTE 4 - DUE FROM /TO OTHER FUNDS

lnterfund rcceivables and payables al June 30, 2010 arc summarized as lollows:

Receivable
Fund

Payable
Fund Purpose Amount

GeneralFund

General Fund

General Fund

Olher Govemmental
Funds

Total

Head Slarl Fund

Loans Fund

Other Govemmental
Funds

Genelal Fund

Payroll and rclated acctuals paid

and nol reimbursed

Payroll and related accruals paid

and nol reimbursed

Payrclland rclaled accruals paid

and nol rcimbursed

Cash poolin lhe same bank

account

$ 1,164

8,899

364,682

246.392

1 62!.132

NOTE 5- CAPITAL ASSETS

A summary of capitalassets and changes occurring in 2010forthe Municipality was as bllows:

Balance
July 1, 2009

Governmental Activities
Retirements/ Balance

(asrestated) Additions Reclassificaiions JuLerqq.?llq

Capital asset, not beinq dep.eciated
Land

Conslructon in progress

Totalcapital assets not being depreciated

Capital assets, bein! deprecialed:
Buildings and buildlng improvemenls

Furniture and fixtu[es

Vehlcles and equipment
lnfrastruclure

Total capital assets b€ing depreciated

Less accumulaled deprecialion for:

Buildings and bu lding improvemenis

Furniture and frxtures

Vehicles and equipment
lnfraslruclure

Total accumulated depreciation

Total capitalassels being depreciated, net

Governmental activities capital assels, net

$ 5,737 776

10.001.281

31,578,319
2,590,975
6,176,071

51.5M.943

(6,714,659)
(1,832,456)

15,488178)
(825.2091

(14.860.502)

36.644.441

$_40041?22

$

2.115.677

2.115.677

4,601297
236,036
126,889

5.963473

(903,874)

1279,4481

\278,027)
(2i5.708)

(1 677.057)

t 6J02.093

t4.392.297\

t4.392.297\

(929,173)

(202,358)
(833,656)

{1.965.187)

172,596
835,797

$ 5,737,776
1.986 885

7.724 661

35,250443
2,624 653
5,469,304

12.158 829

(7 618,533)
(1 939.308)
(4.930.408)

{1 040,9171

1.008.393 115.529.1661

(956.794) 39.974 063

$ r5J{9,0s11 ${,098.44

RO.VAN TORO & CO..
PO ROX 3043 YAUCO PR

CSP Ce iJied Public Acco,atunts and Business Consuhants
00698-3013 . TEL. (787) 856 6220 FAX: 1787) 856-623)
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COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO

MUNICIPALITY OF SAN SEBASTIAN

NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2()1()

NOTE 5 - CAPITAL ASSETS (CONTINUED)

Depreciation expenses were charged to govemmental functions/programs as follows:

Governmenlal activities Amount

Genercl government

Public Safety

Public Wo*s
Culture

Recreation

Health and Welfare

Total depreciation Expenses

$ 88,668

164,957

551,557

180,157

559,374

132.344

0L62.052

ouring fiscal year 2009-2010, the Municipality's management idenlified a potential impakment in lhe A( Center Building due to

evidence of physical damage. The loss resulting from the impairment, was determined using the restoration cost approach and

amounts to $929,'173 and was classified as part of the Culture and Recrealion function in the Statement of Activities. At June

30,2010 the carrying amountofthe AIt Center Buiding was $2,512,208.

A summary of capital assets and changes occurring in 2010 for Villa Soigal Poject was as lollows:

Retkements/ Balance

Businness.typeActivilies (asrestated) Additions Reclassiliclations June30,2010

Ealance
July'1, 2009

Capilal asset, not being deprcciated:

Construchon in prcgress

Total capital assets not being depreciated

Capilal assels, being dep€ciated:
Land impovemenls
Building and building imprcvemenls

Building equipment

Furnifure and fixlures

Equipment

Total capital assets being deprociated

Less accumulaled depreciation for
Land improvemenls
Building and building improvements

Building equipmenl
Furniture and fixtures
Equipment

Total accumulat€d deprecialion

Total capital assets being depreciatod, net

Goyemmental activities capital asseE, nei

6,330
28,712

229

35.271

(18 491)
(97,149)

132,2U)
(288)

1487)

fi48.6991

(113.428i

t4@ $ 1.503.201

739,624
3,M9,041

433,268
33,356
12.333

4.867.622

(s05410)
(2,s85,573)

075,868)
132,107)
{10.3851

(3.309.3431

1.558.279

$ 1,!16,629

$ 58.350

739,624

3,655,371

461,980
33,585

4.902.893

(523,901)
(2,682,722)

(208,1s2)
(32,395)
(10 872],

(3.458.042)

1.444.851

ROMAN TORO &CO,,
PO BOX JOl] YILCO PR

CSP Ce,lilied Public Acconta ts on.l Business Consult@ts
A0698-3043 . TEL. (787) 856-6220 FAX. /787) 856 033
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COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO

MUNICIPALITY OF SAN SEBASTIAN

NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30,2O1()

NOTE 6 -ACCOUNTS PAYABLE AND ACCRUED LIABILITIES

Accounts payable and accrued liabilities in govemmental fund financial statements rcpresent expeoditures incurrcd during fscal

year 2009-2610, and not paid by the Municipality at June 30, 2010. Following is a delailoflhese accounb payable and accrued

liabilities by maiorfund:

Accrued
Liabilities

Account!
Maior Governmental Funds able

$ 317,915

38,988

200,446

$ 111-452

$ 117,106 $ 435,021

38,988

200,446

154.103

Total

General Fund

Head Start Fund

Loans Fuod

olher Governmental Funds

Total

NOTE 7 - BONDS AND NOTES PAYABLE

As described below in Note 10, the l,lunicipality issues generaland special obligalion bonds and fiotes, principally, to provide

funds for the acquisition and construction of major capital facilities, to pay debt incurrcd in prior years, and io cover the

expendilures of a special event. At June 30, 2010, the government-wide and fund financial statements preseflted lhe following

accounts payable, regarding to the outstanding balance of these bonds a0d noies:

$ t1r1!6 $ -!28'558

Description Amount

Principal

Accrued interests

Total

$ 875,000

242.828

$ 1Jr Z-E2!

NOTE 8 - DUE TO OTHER GOVERNMENTAL UNITS

As of June 30, 2010, balanc€ due lo olher govemmental units consists of the following i

Governmental Agency Amount

Puerto Rico Electric Power Authorily

General Service Adminbtration
Puerto Rico Water and SewerAuthority

l[,lunicipal Revenue Collection Center

Retirement System Administralion

lnlernal Revenue Service

Tolal

$ 7,081

2,514
41.484

1S4,811

83,521

s4.223

$ 383.631

ROttlN TORO & CO..
PO BOX 301] YAUCO PR

CSP Ceiiled P blic Accowtants an.l Business Coksuhants

00698 3013 . TEL- (787) 85G622A FAX: 1787) 856-623J
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COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO

MUNICIPALITY OF SAN SEBASTIAN

NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2()1()

NOTE 8- DUE TO OTHER GOVERNMENTAL UNITS (CONTINUED)

The [,lunicipality received a claim lrom f]e Employee's Retirement System of lhe Government of Puerlo Rico due to cedain

laws approved in year 2003, affecting yea.s 2002lhru 2010, for increases in ihe pension plan benelits of the retired employees,

that at the moment ol the approval of these laws were not employees of the lrunicipality of San Sebaslian, and other benelils

such as the Christmas bonus, medicile bonus, spouses benerits and death benefils not assumed by the lrunicipality. These

laws were approved by lhe Legislative branch of lhe Commonweallh of Puerto Rico ifl year 2003, eslablishing that lhe

municipalities, whose employees arc covered under lhe Employee's Retiremeot System of the Commonwealth of Puerto Rico,

should provide the annualfunds to pay for those increases in benelits.

These laws were approved in violation of Article 4 of Law Number 321 of November 6, 1999 aod Article 1.006 of lhe

Aulonomous Law of the l\,lunicipalities ol Puerto Rico ol August 30, 1991, which states that 'evely /egls/arve neasues that are

intended to be apprcved that inpose econonics charyes or affects the nunicipalilies' rcvenues, should identified ot assign the

funds thal should be used by the alfected nunicipalilies to covet those oblgations'.

It is our undersianding that $e laws approved by fie Legislative branch of the Commonwealth of Puerto Rico affects lhe rights

of the l!.,lunicipataties guaranteed by Law Number 321 of November 6, 1999 that amend the Autonomous Law of the

l\4unicipalities of Puerlo Rico, by approving new legislative measures that increases the municipalilies economic obligatioos

without idenlifying or assigning lhe necessary funds to cover the new costs. We are curently challenging these laws in court, if

the decision is nol b€nelicial it will reduce the tund balance at June 30, 2009 ol the General Fund of the Municipality in

approximately $748,543 and the operalions ol lhe fscal year 2009-2010 will end in a deficit by the recognition of $357,709 in

curent expenditu rcs related to these laws.

NOTE 9- DEFERRED REVENUES

A. Municipal license taxes - The defened revenues of $1,346,229 in the General Fund relates to volume of business tax

collected in liscal year 2009-10lhal will be earned in fiscalyear 20l0-11.

B. Federal Grants - The defened revenues prcsented in the other govemmental funds represents the poltiofl of federal

grants received lor which qualifying expenditures have not be€n incuned. Defurred revenues from the federal govemment

are as follows:

Proqram Descriplion Amount

Chlid & Aduft Care Food Program

Child Care Development Block Grant
American Recovery and Re-

inveslment Acl
Others

Total

$ 87,660

26,542

51 165

63

$ lnsrBo

C. Ohers - The defened revenues ol $196,466 in $e General Fund is composed of $120,084 and $76,382 from the

municipal license taxes and rent, respectively.

ROMAN TORO & CO., CSP Cetlilied Public Accowtanls a .l Business Consultants

Po BoX 3013 vAUCO PR 00698-3043 . TEL. (787) 856-O20 F,4-Y: (787) 856-62J3 
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COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO

MUNICIPALITYOF SAN SEBASTIAN

NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED}

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDEO JUNE 30, 2O'IO

NOTE 1O - GENERAL LONG.TERM DEBTS

Long-tern liability activity for the yearended on June 30,2010, was as follows:

Govemmental Activities

Description

Beginning
Balance

(as restated)
Borrowings
orAdditions

Payments or
Deduclions

Ending
Balance

DuelVithin
OneYoar

Bonds and Noles Payable

Property Tax Debt - Law 42

Prope8 Tax Debt- Law 146

LIMS Repaymenl Plan

Estimated landfill closure and
post-closure c€re mst

Compensaled absences
Claims and Judgmenis

Total

$ 13,607,000 $ 5,275,000

174,057
152,303

275,396
2,673,035

265.000

ll!Jt6'!6

$ (1,325,000)
(19,709)
(7,568)

(58,257)

(14,052)

(51,506)

$ 17,557,000 $
980,046
166,489

94,046

261,344
2,621529

265.000

1,240,000
20.948
7,568

61,774

1 1275,000 t 1L476.09a LAg !1 ,i: 1130290

Business-tvpe Activities

Beginning
Balance

DoscriDtion (as rstat d)
Borrowings
orAdditions

Paymenls or
Deductions

Ending
Balance

0ueWithin
OneYear

Business'tvpe Aclivities

Villa Soigal Proiecl l,lortgage

Total

1.130.870

$1a0,8t0

(83.8971 1.046.973 87.651

t lE3.E9n L 10t0t73 9__ 17,051

ROMAN TORO & CO.-

PO BOX JO4] YAL'CO PR
CSP Cenilie.l Public Accotntants and Bushess Consultants
00698 3043 . TEL. t787) 856-62)0 F-4x: 1787) 856-6233 42



COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO

MUNICIPALITY OF SAN SEBASTIAN

NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

FORTHE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30,2()1()

NOTE IO - GENERAL LONG.TERM DEBTS (CONTINUED)

A. GENERAL OBLIGATIONS BONOS AND NOTES PAYABLE

The Municipality issues general and special obligation bonds and notes, principally, to provide funds for the

const.uction of major capital facilities, to pay debt incurred in p or years, and to cover the expenditures of

Bonds and notes payables as ofJune 30, 2010, are comprised of the following individual issuesi

acquisilion and

a special event.

DESCRIPTION AMOUNT

$3,420,000, Series 1996, for conskuction puposes, payable in annual installments ranging ftom

$70,000 to $315,000, e)(cluding va able interest from 4.70% to6.58%, through January 1' 2016

$1,010,000, Series 1996, for coostruction purposes, payable in annual installments ranging from

$20,000 to $95,000, excluding variable interest from 4.70 to 6.58%, through January 1' 2015

$1,800,000, Series 1997, for construction purposes, payable in installments ranging from $20,00010

$165,000, excluding variable interest from 4.87% to 6.56%, through July 1, 2021

$1,510,000, Se.ies 2001, for construction purposes, payable in annual installmenls ranging from

$20,000 to $135,000, excluding variable iflterest irom 2 70% to 5.60%, through July 1, 2026

$1,110,000, Series 2005, for constucton purposes, payable in annual installments ranging from

$50,000 to $105,000, ercluding va able interest from 3.28% to 4 80%, through January 1, 2019

$1,150,000, Series 2007, forconstruction purposes, payable in annual installments ranging from

$20,000 io $95,000, excluding variable interest lTom 1.53% to 7.00%, through July 1, 2031

$485,000, Series 2007, for operational purposes, payable in annual inslallments ranging lrom

$30,000 to $65,000, excluding variable inleresl frcm 1.53% to 7 00%, through July 1, 2016

$670,000, Series 2007, for purchase ofequipment, payable in an0ual installments ranging from

$75,000 to $120,000, excluding variable interest from 1 53% to 6.00%, through July 1, 2013

$2,810,000, Series 2005, for operational purposes, payable in annual installments ranging from

$225,000 to $345,000, excluding va able interest from 4.50o/o to 5 00"/",lhrough July 1,2014

$967,000, Series 2008, forconstruction purposes, payable in annual installments ranging from

$80,000 to $142,000, excluding variable interest from 1.43% to 6.00%, filough July 1, 2017

$3,445,000, Sedes 2008, fot construction purposes, payable in annual installments ranging from

$50,000 to $295,000, excludinq variable intercstfrom 1.53o/" to 7 50"/o, through July 1, 2032

ROMIN TORO A CO-, CSP Certiliel P blit Accowta tsand Rusiness Consukants

PO ROX i01l vAUCO PR A0698 3A13 TEL (787) 856-62)A F,LX: 1787) 856' 33

1,575,000

410,000

't,260,000

1,250,000

760,000

1,070,000

330,000

330,000

1,290,000

802,000

3,340,000
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COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO

MUNICIPALITY OF SAN SEBASTIAN

NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTItIUED)

FOR THE FISCALYEAR EiIDED JUNE 30,2O1O

NOTE 1() -GENERAL LONG.TERM DEBTS (CONTINUED)

A, GENEML OBLIGATIONS BONDS AND NOTES PAYABLE (CONTINUED)

DESCRIPTION AMOUNT

$660,000, Series 2010, for purchase of equipment, payable in annual installments ranging from

$75,000 to $'120,000, excluding variable interest from 6.00% to 7.00%,lhrough July 1, 2016

$990,000, Series 2010, for construction purposes, payable in annualinstallments ranging from

$10,000 to $80,000, excluding variable interest from 6 00 to 7.00%, through July 1, 203t4

- $ 1 ,51 0,000, Series 2010, for construction puQoses, payable in annual installmenls rang ing from

$20,000 to $130,000, excluding variable interest from 6.00% to 7.50o/", thtough July 1,2034

- $605,000, Series 2010, for construction purposes, payable in annual installments ranging from

$5,000 to $50,000, excluding variable interest from 6 00% to 7.50%, through July 1, 2034

- $ 1 ,51 0,000, Sedes 2010, for constructiott purposes, payable in annual installments rang ing from

$25,000 to $120,000, excluding variable interest from 4 750/0 lo 6.750l", thrcugh July 1,2034

- Total General Obligations

585,000

980,000

1,490,000

600,000

1.485.000

L_r2t52.000

- These bonds and notes are payable wilh the lollowing l,4unicipality's resources:

.:, Special ad valorem property tax, which is restricted for debt seNice and rctained by lhe Government Development Bank for

- Puerto Rico for such Purposes;

, l\runicipalsales taxes resources restricted fordebl service, and;

.' ODerational rcsources.

ROMAN TORO & CO., CSP CeniJie.l Public Accotrttants and Business Consultants

PO BOX 3043 YAUCO PR 00698-308 . TEL. (787) 85C6220 FAX: (787) 856 623J 44



COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO

MUNICIPALITY OF SAN SEBASTIAN

NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONIINUED)

FORTHE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30,2O1l)

NOTE IO- GENERAL LONG.TERM DEBTS (COITITINUED)

A. GENERAL OBLIGATIONS BONDS AND NOTES PAYABLE (CONTINUEO)

The annual requirements to amortize the general obligations bonds outstanding as of June 30, 2010 are as follows:

Year Ending
June 30,

Principal
payment

lnierest
payment Total

2011

2012
2013
2014
2015
2016-2020
2021-2025
2026-2030
2031-2035

Total

$ 1,240,000

1,335,000

1,430,000

1,390,000

1,135,000

3,527,000

2,595,000

2,880,000

2.025.000

$ 17t5t 000

$ 981,922

1,028,394

945,247
865,314
823,680

3,229,689

2,306,927

1,368,724

323.376

$ 1L8732Z3

$ 2,221,922
2,363,394

2,375,247

2,255,314
't,958,680

6,756,689

4,901,927
4,248,724
2.348,376

LAr80'2z3

The mo(gage payable by he Business-type Activities is owed by Villa Soigal Project and consisb of a 8% mortgage note,

payable in monthly installments of $13,203, including interest, until 2019, collaleralized with land and building.

Annualrequircments to maturity oftle mortgage are as followsi

Year Ending Principal
June 30, payment

lnlerest
payment Total

2011

2012
2013

2014
2015

2016-2019

Total

$ 87,651

93,775
100,604

107,930

115,790

541.223

$r.046.973

$ 71,021

64,655

57,826

50,500

42,640
79.871

L l66t13

$ 158,672

158,430

158,430

158,430

158,430

621.094

Llrll!t4!6

B. PROPERTY TAX DEBTS -LAW42

On January 26, 2000, Act N0.42 was enacted io authorize the CRllt to enter into a financi.g agreement of up to $200 million,

for a term not exceeding 30 yea$. The fnancing agreement allows for the fnancing of a debt that the municipalities of Puerto

Rico have with the CRli,,l, arising from the fnal settlemenb of property tax advances vercus actual collections through fiscal

year 2000. The amounts lhat the municipalities will collect lrom the additional property taxes resulting ftom the increases in the

subsidy from the Commoowealth to the municipalities are assigned thrcugh this law to repay such loa0. The increase in this

subsidy was lhe resull of the Public Law No. 238 of August 1 5, 1 999.
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COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO

MUNICIPALITY OF SAN SEBASTIAN

NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS {CONTINUED)

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30,20'IO

NOTE IO - GENERAL LONG.TERIT DEETS (CONTINUED)

B. PROPERTY TAX DEBTS - LAW 42 (CONTINUED)

tn addilion, on February 12, 2003, the Municipality enlered into a repayment agrcemenl wilh the Government oevelopment Bank for

puerlo Rico {GDB) ana he CRllV, to pay ofi the excess of propedy tax advances through fiscal year 2000 and 2001. The CRIIV

retains the p;yment Irom lhe poperty tax advances of lhe i,lunicipality. The amounts retained by the CRlLtr are remitted lo GoB on

July 1 of eich year through July 1, 2032. The outstanding balance of the nole payable lo the CRIII al June 30, 2010 amounted to

$980,046

C. PROPERTY TAX DEBT - LAW 146

On Seplember 24, 2002, the CRltul, on behalf of lhe municipalilles of Puedo Rico, enlered inlo a tinancing agreement wilh GDB

pursuant to the prcvisions of Law No. 146 of October 11, 2001. The purpose of this linancing a$eemenl was lo extinguish in advance

certain bonds payabte issued by the Public Finance Corporation, a subsidiary of lhe GDB, wtlich were originally issued to pay certain

properiy tax receivabtes owned by the municipalities of Puerlo Rico through 1996. The outstanding balance of the note payable lo the

cRlM al June 30. 2010 amounled lo $166,489.

D. PROPERTY TAX DEBTS - LIMS REPAYiIENT PLAN

The l!4unicipality entered into a financlng agreement with the CRIM for the paymenl of the lt4unicipalily's share of the cost of an

infomation ma;agement syslem acquired by the CRll!,4 on behall of all municipalilies, Ior lhe management of a digital database of

kxpaye/s propertles bcaled in Puerto Rico. The oulslanding balance ol the nole payable to the CRllt4 at June 30, 201 0 amounted lo

$94,046.

The annual requirements lo amortize the property tax debls oulslanding as ol June 30' 2010 are as follows:

Year Ending Principal lnterest

June 30, payment Payment Total

2011
2012
2013
2014
2015
2016-2020
2021-2025
2026-2030
2031-2035

Total

$ 90,290

62,104
31,230

32,717

u,297
198,892

256,259

334,060

200.732

$ t-2t0,5&t

$ 75,367

69,850

67,020

65,063

63,012

280,595

211,460
121,891

18.988

L973,216

$ 165,657

131,954

98,250

97,780
97,309

479,487

467,719
455,951

219.720

$],zli&21

E. COMPENSATEDABSEI{CES

Tie govemmenlwide siatement of net assets includes $2,621,529 of accrued sick leave benefits, and accrued vacalion benefils,

rcpresenling lhe l!,4unicipalily's commitmentlo fund such cosls frcm fulure operations.

ROM4N TORO &CO., CSP CeftiJied Public A.tottttttntt an.l Business Consultahts

PO ROX 1043 YAUCO PR N698 3043 ' TEL. (787) 856'6220 F,4X: (787) 856'6233 46



NOTE 1O - GENEML LOiIG.IERM DEBTS {CONTINUED)

F. CLAI SATID JUDGMENTS

Liabililies of $265 OO0 reporled in the statement of net assels represenl the balance owed for claims and judgmenls al June 30, 2010,

as described in Note 19.

NOTE I1- LANDFILL CLOSUREANO POSTCLOSURE CARE COST OBLIGATION

The funicipalily ovms a municipal solid waste landlill and adopted the rcquircd provisions of Slalement No. 18, "Accounting fot

Municipal Solid Waste Landfill Clasue and Post C/osure Cale Cosls', issued by the Governmental Accounling Slandards Board

(GASB No. 18) and the reguiations set forth by lhe U S Environmenlal Prcleclion Agency (EPA) in ils 'Solid Wasle Disposal Facility

Cdleia', issued on October g, 1991. State and fedeml laws and rcgulalions require the l!4unicipalily to place a iinal cover on ils landfill

site when closed and perform cedain maintenance and monitoring tunctions at the landfill site for 30 years after closure. Allhough

closlre and posl ctosure mre costs wlll be paid only near or afler the date that the landlill stops accepting wasie, lhe ft.4unicipality

rcporls a porlion ol these closure and post closure carc costs as an operating expense in each peiod based on landlill c€pacily used

as of each statement of net assets date. The Municipality discontinued its landrill operalions and ceased to accept solid wasle in

January 1993. Posl closure care procedurcs werc assumed by lhe l!4unicipality and the closure process $€s compleled in January 17

1997.

The lolaleslimaled liability for post closure carc cosls has been determined in approximately $4.9 million as of June 30, 2010.

NOTE I2 - DEBT RETIREMENT

Revenues of lhe Debl SeNice Fund cons sl of the ad,valorem property laxes which are recognized as rcvenue vttlen collecled lrom

taxpayers and reporled by the lvunicipal Revenue Collection Center ol the Commonwealth of Puerlo Rico to the l!4unicipality.

These property laxes are accumulaied by the l\4unicipal Revenue Collection Center in cosls ol the general obligations bonds issued

by the l,4unicipality. Payments are made lo lhe Government Development Bank of the Commonweallh of Puerto Rico frcm such

accumulated funds bythe lr,{unlcipalRevenue Collection CenterofPuerto Rico.

NOTE 13- PROPERTY TAXES

The l\,4unicipal Revenue Collecllon Center of the Commonwealth ol Puerto Rico is responsible for lhe assessmenl of all real and

personal properly located withln the [,lunicipality and for the levy, adminislration and colleclion of the corrcsponding lax contribulion.

The property lax contribution is levied each year over the appraised value of the property at the beginning of the calendar year. The

real properly assessment is based on lhe curenl value exisling in lhe year 1957 and the personal propedy at the current value at the

date ofthe assessment

The lax rate per annum is 9.08% for real property and 5.830/0 for personal prope.ty of which 1.03% of both belong lo the

Common!/ealth of Puerlo Rico and 8.05% and 4.80%, respectively, belongs to lhe ltlunlclpality. From the podion belonglng lo the

Municipality, 6.00"/0 and 3.00%, rcspeclively, reprcsenis the lt4unicipality's basic tax late thal is approprlated for geneEl purposes and

lherefore accounted for thrcugh lhe GeneEl Fund.
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NOTE 13- PROPERTY TAXES (COi{T|NUEo)

The remaining porlions 2.2570 for .eal property and 2.00% for Prsonal properly rcpresents lhe ad-valorem properly taxes withheld by

te tvunicipaiievenue Collection Cenier of the Commonlrealth of Puerlo Rico and restdcted for debt service, which is accounted for

if,mrgh thi Oebt Service fund . The l!,lunicipality has not rcached lhe maximum statutory lax rate lirnit for lhe basic lax vihile there is

no limilalion for the ad-valoremlax rate.

The Commonwealth oI puedo Rico grants complete rcal property lax exoneration on the lirst $15,000 assessed valualion on

residential units occlpied by thek owters. However, lhe l!4unicipality receives the full amount levied, except for rcsidenlial units

assessed at less tha; g3,50b on which a complete eremption is granted. The Municipal Revenue Collection Center, instead of the

property laxpayer, becomes lhesource of payment in lhese cases

The l\4unicipality grants a complete exemplion frcm pelsonal propedy taxes up to an assessment value of $50'000 to retaile[s with an

annual net salei-volume of b;s fian $150,000. The fi,lunicipal Revenue collection cenler advances to lhe Municipalily, on monlhly

payments, 100% of the mntribulion assessed over properly lor each fiscal year. ln accordance to Law, lhese advances will be

co;tribulions by the l\,4unicipal Revenue Collection Cenler from taxpayers. The Municipal Revenue Collectlon Center pe odically

informs to the Municipaliiyihe amounls collecled from taxpayers and applied to outslanding advances

The l!4unicipalily rccords as revenue in the generalfund the property tax conlribulion wilen received from monthly advances from

Municipal Revenue Colleclion Center

Dle to the lact that collections of property tax are applied lo lhe advances of property tax paid by the l!4unicipal Revenue Collection

Cenler, the amorlizalion of the advance al end of year was not available due lo thal is in process of ve ficalion by exlernal auditors

NOTE,I4- MUI{ICIPAL LICENSE TAXES

The municipal license lax is levied each year based on the p or year's gross revenues for all commercial and indust al organizations

doing business in the [Iunic]pality and $/ttich are nol totally or paflially erempt from this tax und-eJ the lndust al lncentives Laws of the

Com;onweatth of puerto Rlco. All taxpayeG are required to fle their declarations by April 23 of each year. The tax rates are as

follows:

.:. 1.50%fo.linancial instilutions.

* 1.00% for savings and loan associations.

, 0 50% for olher organlzallons.

Taxes are payabte in two equal semlannual installments on July 1 and January '1 follo.ring the dale of levy. lf they arc paid with

declaralion; th; taxpayer is g;anted a 5% of discount Colleclions of laxes dunng current liscal year, applicable 10 the next liscal year,

are recorded as deferred revenues in lhe General Fund

NOTE 15.SALESAND USE TAXES

on July 4, 2006, the Leglslallre of the commonrgalth of Puerlo Rico approved Act No. 117 (',Act 117',) vt'illch amends the Puedo

Rico l;Gmat Reveile c;de of 1994 to provide for a sates and use tax of 5.5% lo be imposed by the Commonlvealth Govemment.

Act 1j7 also aulhodzes each municipalty govemment to impose a municipal sales and use 1ax of 1.50/0. This municipal sales and use

lax has in generatlhe same tax base andlimitations (excepl for unprocessed foods)as lhose provided by the Commonwealth's sales

and use tax.
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NOTE 15-SALES AND USE TAXES (CONTTNUED)

Seclion 6189 ofthe Puerto Rico lntemal Revenue Code of 1994, as amended, authoizes the l\4unicipalities n Pueio Rico lo impose

a sales and use tax to aonsumers. This tax mlst be imposed in conformity with lhe base, exemplions and limilations mntained

Subtitle BB of lhe Code. The Municipal Sales Tax is specmcally imposed overall sales lransaclions of laxable ltems and comblned
lransactions (as deiined by the municipal inlemal regulalion) taken place wthin municipal limits. The l\.lunicipal Tax is also speciflcally
imposed over the purchase p ce for lhe use, storage or consumplion of taxable transaclions (as derned by the municipal inlemal

regulation) taken placewilhin municipal lilnils.

The ltrluflicipal Legislature approved the imposilion of the municipal sales and use tax during liscal year 2006-2007. lndividuals

organizalions and entities subject to collectlhe municipalsales and use lax musl rile a tax return lo the Municipalily. Tax is due each

20h day of each monlh based on lax collecled in lhe preceding monlh. Resources are recorded in lhe General Fund.

Aiso, ofl July 29,2007, the Governor of Pueno Rico signed into Law an amendment of ActNo.117,H.B.2193knownasActNo.80.
The most significant amendments {ere firsl, lo uniform the tax rate at 7% of yvhich lhe municipalilies will collect 1% and lhe Puedo

Rico Treasury Deparlmenl the other 60/0, 05% ofthe 6% belongs lo the municipality and it s dislribuled thrcugh three separate funds

l,lunicipal Developmenl F!nd, l4unicipal Redemplion Fund and l\,4un]clpal lmprovemenls Fund; secondly the eslablishment of a Local

Commercial Rule and lhe elimination of source and ne)(us rules lo impose the sale and use tax. These funds arc administercd by lhe
Governmenl Developmenl Bank for Puerlo Rico. Finally, the Law restricts the useolthefunds bythe municipalilies to cerlain specilic
activities.

NOTE I6. INTERGOVERT{ ENTAL REVENUES

lnlergovemmentalGvenues consist pdmaily offunds received from the Commonwealth of Puefu Rico,'in lieu oftax'paymenls from

the Ouasi-public Corporalion, Puerlo Rico Elect c Power Aulhorily, and lederal linancial assistance received lrom federal
govemment.

Granls and subsidies rcceived fom lhe Commonwealth of Puerto Rico and iederal agencies include, among others a generalslbsidy
lor urban development and capilal improvements lntergovemmenlalrcvenues arc accounted for through the GeneralFund except for
those directly related to urban developmenl and capilal improvemenls, which are aciounled Iorthrough the SpecialRevenue and lhe

Capital Projecl Funds. Federal Financial lussislance is recorded in the Speclal Revenue Fund.

NOTE I7 - INTERFUND TMNSFERS

lnlerfund lEnsfers during the fiscalyear ended al June 30, 2010, are s!mmadzed as followsi

Transfer Out Transfer ln Purpose Amount

GeneralFund Debt Service Fund Debi retirement

To cover operaling
expenditures

To cover operating

expenditurcs

$ 497,365

1,259

257,497

Debl SeNice Fund General Fund

Olher Governmenlal

Funds GeneralFund

OtherGovemmenlal OlherGovemmenlal
Funds Funds

Total

To cover operating
expendilures U.427

t r903u
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NOTE,IS- EMPLOYEE'S RETIREMENT PLAN

The Employee's Retirement System of the Govemment of Puerto Rico and its instrumentality (ERS) is $e administrator of a

coslsharing multple-employer retircment system established by the Commo0wealth of Puerto Rico. The ERS was created

under the Act 447, approved on l!4ay 15, 1951, as amended, and became efiective on January 1, 1952. ERS covers all regular

employees of the Commonwealth of Puerto Rico and its instrumentality and of certain municipalities and componenls units not

covered by theirowo retirement systems.

Participation is mandatory except lot members of the Legislature, Government Secretaries, Head of Agencies and Public

l0strumentality, Assistants of lhe Governor, the Comptroller offie Puerto Rico, Gubematorial Board and Committee appointees

and Experimental Service Station employees. ERS provides retirement, death and disability benefils. Disability retiement

benefits are available to membeE for occupational and non-occupational disabilities. Retilement benefits depend upon age at

reliremenl and numberofyears of credited seNice. Benefits vest after ten yearc of plan participatioo

The lrunicipality adopled the requiremenls of GASBS No. 25 for all lhe carcer employees that are covered under the

Commonwealth of Puerto Rico Employee's Relirement System, a multiple€mployer public employee retirement system,

established by State Laws.

Under the plan, the employees and employer portions ale contributed, for whach, tle employee amount is withheld from

salades. Covered employees are required by Commonwealth statute to contribute 5.775% for the frct $550 of monthly salary

ptus 8.275% for the excess ofthis amounl, or on the alternative,8.275ol" of allsalary. The Municipality contributes to the syslem

9.275"/0 of the participating employee's salaries.

Law Number 305 of September 24, 1999, amendments the Act Number 447 lhat establish a savings prcgram. All employees

active in the system as of December 31, 1999 may elect lo lransfer from deline contribution prog.ams to the new savings

program (a delined contribution plan). Employees in lhe savings program may now contribute ilm a minimum 0f8.275olo up to

a maximum of 10o/o of their monthly salary, and will invested in an account which will either: (a) eam a fxed rate based on the

two-year Constant lraturity Treasury Note or, (b) earn a rate equal to 75% of $e retum of lhe Syslem's investment portfolio (net

of management fees), or (c) earn a combination of both altematives. lf at time of retirement accumulaled b€nefits amount to

$10,000 or less may elect lo receive a lump sum dist buiion up to the accumulated benelits- Under the new program the

relirement age is reduced from 65 to 60 for those employees who ioined the current plan ofl or affer Apil 1, 1990.

The pension beneft for participants who retire with less than 30 years of service is computed at the rale of 1%ok ol lhei avercge

compensation for each year of credit service for the remaining years. The System also provides for death and disability beflefits

and lie asseb of the System pertaining to the participant employees.

A vaiety of signilicant actuarial assumptions are used to determine the standard measure of the pension benefit obligalion and

these assumptions are summarized below:

* The present value ofthe future pension payments was computed by using a discount of 9%

* Future pension paymeots rcflect an assumption of a 6% salary iflcrease.

ROMAN TORO & CO., CSP Certiled Public Accotntants and Busi ess Consultants
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NOTE 18 - EMPLOYEE'S RETIREMENT PLAN (CONTINUED)

All employees lhat do not elect to transfer for the new program and who at lie lime ol employment are 55 yearc old or less are

eligib6 toparticipate in the System. Pension b€nefits fol parlicipants with 30 years of seNice arc as follows:

COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO

MUNICIPALITY OF SAN SEBASTIAN

NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30,2O1O

YEARSOF PARTICIPANT'S

SERVICE AGE PENSION BENEFITS

65% of the average of the three years of highest salary during the

30 or more 55 or less employee's service period

750/0 of the average of the lhree yeam of highest salary during the

30 or more 58 or more employee's seruice period

75ol" of the average of the three years ol highest salary during the

employee's seNice pe od (employees started working afler April 1,

30 or more 65 or more 1990).

ROM4|I TORO & CO., CSP Certified Public Acco, tdnts an.l Rusiness Consuhants
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The amount of the total pension benelit obligation is based on a standardized measurement established by GASBS No. 27,

Financial Repoting fot Delned Benefit Pensiin Ptans and Notes Disc/osure for Delined Contibtlions Plans. The standardized

measureme;t is tie actua al prcsent value of estimated defned pension benefits, adjusted for the effects ol projected salary

increases and step-mle benefits, estimated to be payable in the luture as a result ofemployee seryices perlormed to date.

The measure is intended lo help users assess the System's funding status on a going{oncern basis, assess pmgress made in

accumulating sulfrcienl assets lo pay benefits when due, and make compa sons among other public retirement systems. The

measure is independent of the actuarialfunding method used to determine coniributions to lhe plan

The membership of retirces and beneficiaries currenlly receiving benefits and terminated employees entitled to benefits, but not

yet receiving beneits, and active employees and lhe distribution of active employees between vested and non-vested b nol

readily available.

contdbutions in 2006 and prior years were made based on pe.centages established by the law. such percentage has not beetl

based on actuarial studies, as required by accounting principtes generally accepted in the united states of America. An

actuarial compilation ofthe annual mntribution applicable to the l!,lunicipality has not beefl prepared. Accordingly, the accouflts

by which the actualcont butions differ from the requiled actuarial contributions are not known'

The total pension expenditures recorded in the category ol administration for lhe Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2010 was

approximaiely $+03,2d9. Alt emptoyees wio at the 1me of employment are 55 years old or less are eligible to paftcipate i0 lhe

Sistem. No beneril is payable iflhe participanl receives a refund of his accumulated cootributions'
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NOTE I8 - EMPLOYEE'S RETIREiIENT PLAI{ (CONTINUED)

The hislorical trend informalion regarding the accumulalion ol assets and pension beneiil obligation in ihe ERS is not availabb For

he ten-year lrend information, ref; lo th; separaiely issued flnancial statements of the ERS_as of and for the liscalyear ended June

iO, zot6. fn" p.n. n"ti,"me;t plan Adminislration provides addilional infonnation of the ERS. They issue a public available iinancial

reiort tna inctuOes tinanciat statements and required supplemenlary information for ERS, as acomponenl unit of the Commonwealth

of iuerto Rico. That report may be obtained by writing to the Adminisiration at PO 80x42003, Minillas Stalion, San Juan, P.R 00940.

I{OTE I9 - CONTINGENCIES

A. CLAIMSANOJUDGI{Ei{TS

The Municipality is, at prcsent, a defendant in a number of legal matteE lhat arise from alleged improper applicalion of policies and

negligence in t'he ordinary murse of ttre l\.iunicipalily's activities. With respecl to pending liligation, the lt4unicipality has rcported

liabilities of $265,000 in the govemmentwide statement of net assels.

lt is managemenl's optnion, based on lhe advice of ihe legalcounsel, that the potenlial claims against tie lt4unicipality not covered by

insurance wll nol malerially affect lhe financial resources for its payment

ln addition, the l!4unicipatily is a defendant or codefendant in several legal prcceedings, which are in discoverystage Certain of lhese

ctaims are'conereO lyinsurance. Legalmunsels wilh the information cunenlly available can not delemine ihe linaloutcome of lhese

proceeding. Howevei, it has been th; Municipality's expedence thal such actions are setlled for amounls subslantially less than the

claim amounts.

B. FEDERAL GRANTS

ln lhe normal cou6e of operations, the lvunicipality receives granls frcm va ous Federal and slale agencies. The grant programs are

subject lo audit by agenis of lhe granting authoriiy, the purpose oI which is to ensure compliance with conditions precedent to the

granting of funOs. Any tiaOitity for r;imbuGement which may arise as the rcsull oflhese audlls is not believed lo be malerial.
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NOTE 20 -ACCOUNTING CHAI'IGES AND RESTATEMENTS

A. GOVERNMENTAL FUND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The following restatements have been made in the governmental fund financial statements, which are reported as an

adjustmentto the beginning fund balances:

General
Fund

Debt
Service

O'ther

Governmental
Fund Tolal

5,544,555

m6,835

(30e)

1,138,691

(132,534)

293,0,15

(765,000)

(256,002)

117.866

Head

Start
Loans
Fund

Fund balance, beginning

To eliminale prior year accounts

PaYable

Correctioo of an accounting

error

To reclassify prior yeal defened
revenues

To reclassify prior year fufld

balances of federal programs

To reclassify prior yearfund

delicit lo account receivables

To adjusl pdor year bonds and

notes principal payable

To adiust prioryear bonds and

noles interests payable

To adjust prior year accou nts

receivable

Fund balance, beginning as
reslated

$ (52,685) $ 2,128,105 $'1,203,848

f*",12,1r)L-('ost

$ 1,707,530 $ 557,757 $

1,138,691

(132,534)

240,36052,685

(76s,000)

(256,002)

117.866

i-rlr!4.056 $ : i1J24,969 S 1203.E40 $ 1804211 $ 6J47J47
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_ NOTE 20 -ACCOUNTING CHANGES AND RESTATEMENTS (COI'ITINUED)

B, GOVERN[IENTAL WIDE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

- The following restatements have been made in tE govemmental wide f0ancial statemenls, which are rcported as an
adjustmentto the beglnning nel assetsl

Descriplion Total

- Net assets, beginning $ 27,U4,982

To eliminate prior year accounts payable 206,835

_ Conection ofan accounting enor (309)

To reclassity prior yeal delened revenues 1,138,691

_ To reclassiry prior year fund balances of federal

- progrEms (132,534)

To rcclassify prior year to account receivables 293,045

- To adjust prior year bonds and notes interest
payable (43,832)

_ Coreclion of prior year bonds and notes

interests payable 598,484

To adjust prior year accounts receivable 1 1 7,866

To adiust prior year eslimated landfllclosure
and post-closure care cost 4,5U,772

Adjustrnent to capital assets 38.323

Net as3ek, beginning as reslated $316/6323

_ NOTE 2I SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

On November 22, 2010 lhe lty'unicipality s Executive Branch approved Ordinance Number 47, Series 2010-2011, authorizing the

issuance of a Bond in the amount of $2,770,000, for construction purposes. This bond is payable wdh resources collected

- through the l\,{unicipal Redemption Fund.

END OF NOTES

- R OMAN TORO & CO., CSP Ceftli.d Public Accotntants an.l Business Consuhants
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COMiIONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO

I/lUNICIPALITY OF SAN SEBASTIAN

BUOGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE. GEIIERAL FUND

FOR THE FISCALYEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2O1()

Variancewith
ActualAmounG FinalBudget

{BudgetaryBasis) PositiveBudoeted Amounts
O ginal Final (See Note A) (NeqativeI

REVENUES:
Property taxes
I\,lunicipal license tares
Charges for seruices
Stale conlributions
Licenses and pemils
lnteresl, fines and penallies

Olher revenues
P or year allocation

Total revenues

EXPENDITURES, ENCUMBMNCES At{D
OTHER FINANCING USES:

Current:

Genemlgovenmenl
Public safety
Publicworks
Cuhrre
Recrealion
Health and welfare
Transferoul

Total expenditures, encumbrances and other
fnancing uses

EXCESS (DEFTCTENCY) 0F REVENUES oVER
(UNDER) EXPENOIlURES, ENCU[IBMNCES
AND OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)

$ 3,872,229

1,920,000

713,000

5,012,289
1,016,000

209,000
441,000

$ 3,872,229
1,920,000

713,000
5,6M,974
1,016.000

209,000
441,000

650 000

$ 3,872,229
1,762p48

629,257
5,629,676

437,296
228,270

578,998

13.137.814

7,397,503
1,061 843
2,741983

330,969

373,054
925,081

497 365

$

\157,952)
{83,703)

24,702
(578,704)

19,270
137,998

1650.000)

JL2ll!J091

439,283
18,259

554,282

157

1,591

43,298
41.535

6,918,043
1,089,949
3,009,664

305,950
357,973
963,039
538.900

JIJ!!,fl!

7,836,786
1,080,102

3,296,265

331 126

374,645
968,379
538 900

13.327.798 1 098.405

$ 1189,9&0 $ 1189p&0

ROMAN TORO & CO., CSP Cetilied Public Accontantsand Business Consultants
POROX3043 vAUCO PR N698-3043 . fEL. (787) 856-6220 F,Lr:087) 856-6233
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COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO
II,IUNICIPALITY OF SAN SEBASTIAN

NOTES TO BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE. GENERAL FUND

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30,2O1O

NOTE A - EXPLANATION OF OIFFERENCE BETWEEN BUOGETARY INFLOWS ANO OUTFLOWS AND GAAP REVENUES AND
EXPENSES

Explanation of Differonce3:

Sourcos/infl ows of reloutces:
Actual amounls (budgelary basis)"available for approprialion' from he budgetary comparison schedule

Differences-budgel lo GAAP
Tolalrcvenues and otherfinancing sources as reporled on lhe statemenl oI rcvenues, expendilures, and

cianges in fund balances

Usesroutflows of rosources:
Acfual amounls (budgelary basis)"total charges to appopriations' from tie budgetary comparison schedule

Differences-budget to GMP:
Prior yeal expendilurc aIe not outffows of budgetary resources, but are e)eendifurc lor financial purposes

Encumbmnces for supplies and equipment ordered, but nol received, are reported in the year lhe oder is
placed for budgetary reporling purposes

Transfer to other funds are outffows of budgelary resources but arc not expenditure for financial reporting
purposes

Total expendifures and otiq fnancinq uses as reported on lhe stalemenl of revenues, expendifures, and
changes in fund balances

$ 13,137,814

flaa7,014

$ 13,327,798

234,930

l.217,744)
(497.365)

Lle04?.0t9

NOTE B -STEWARDSHIP, COMPLIANCE AND ACCOUNTABILITY

A. BUDGETARY CONTROL

The Municipality's annual budget is prepared on the budgetary basis of accounting, which is not in accordance with GMP, and
represents departmenlal appropiations recommended by the llayo. and approved by the l\runicipal Legislature prior to the

beginning of the fscal year. Amendments to the budgei require lhe approval of the Municipal Legislature. Transfers of
appropriations within the budget, known as Mayo/s Resolutions, do not require the approvalof the Municipal Legislature.

The Municjpality prepares ils annual budget itcluding the operalions of lhe general fund.

For budgetary purposes, encumbrance accounting is used. Ihe encumbraflces (i.e., purchase orders, contracts) are considered
expenditures when incurred. For GAAP reporting purposes, encumbrances oulstanding at yearend are reported as

reservations of fund balances and do not constitute expenditures or liabilities because the commilments will be honored du ng

the subsequent year.

The unencumbercd balance of any appropriation al lhe end of the fscal year will lapse at tle end of such ,iscal year. Olher
appropriations, mainly capital project apprcpriations, are conlinuiflg accounts tor which lhe [4unicipal Legislature has authorized

that an unspent balance from ihe pdor year be carried foMard and made available forcurrent spending-

The annual budget as presented in tle Budgetary Comparison Schedule-General Fund is the budget ordinance at June 30,

2010 representing he original budget. There were no supplemental appropriations for the year ended June 30, 20'10.

ROM4N TORO & CO., CSP Ceflilied Public Accontants and Dusiness Consuhants
PO BOX 3041 YAIICO PR 00698 t011 . TEL. (787) 856-6220 F,4,Y: 087) 856-6233 
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COI,II{ONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO

IUIIICIPALITY OF SAN SEBASTIAN

SCHEOULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS

FOR THE YEARENDED JUNE 30,2OIO

ccc{ll

3 I,046,971

t,t97it?

t7r,,8l

Fa)MAL GR{NTOR/PASS.T}IROUGH OR CLLS I& IITLI

t.S. pennrnr of Asriculture

RumlRenlal Houstng L.an (Selod 515 Dircct Lrn)
Paslrhrcugh Pu.no Rro Educatirn D.prnItrr:

ahitd and Aduh care Food ProtEm

Subrorrl D.padrnr of a!riuhurt

Comniry D.velopmr Block Gam PmgEn\ Frrnleftd Gnrc
ARRA-ComnU D.r.hpft.r BlrchG.nt Reov.O

Slbioral Comniry Delebpmr Bloct Ganr PrgEn\ Clusi€.

serhn 3Hous!rg Assisra... Patmrs

EElgency SheltsGnt PDgBm

ARM-Homkssn6s PrEveniioD ad Rapil ReHousing PDgBm

Public and IndioD Housing

S€crion 3 HolsinB (trae Vouchd PmADn

t.1.231

4.411

SubroralU.S Depr olHousingrndlrrbanD€relopmnt

!.S. peErrrEnr orTrrsm.tltio!
Pass throueh Pudo Rico Depanrnr o f rE.sp.nar6n
(Tmtic SatiD CormissFn):

Siare a.d Comnii) Hieh{a) Safer)

!D.&.!sqc4!Ills!ol!4E!E4s!4!!!

Inrb Head shn
Pass rhreugh Pueno Rico (i.\emols Olnceof(l,iH Sen icer and

Co,rmniil De\elopmnr:

Head Sran PngEn
ARRA- Head Sran

Sublobl I lead sran aluns
Pasrrhrough Pu.no Rro C.\.mois Oili.c ofcb d Se6 r.s a.dCom0.n)

Child Care and De\elopmnl Block (iEnr

subroralD.pr.dlHcalrhandHumnsentes

!:!.-EE44a4d.&Eab4ds!rsi!
Paslrhbulh th. Pleno tuco C.\emols Ofll.e ((n\emo/s AurhoEd

tupesenrahe Gr\R)

Public Assisrancc aftnr

14,333

663.5:9

2,615,93r

p,157

2,qx.t99

435,.151

1.1t9,650

93.575

I O I TL [](PL\ DITL RL\ O T I [I)[XTL A\\ ,{RDS ! ll?2,{iq

See noles lo Sdredule ol Expenditures of Fedelal Awads
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COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO
MUNICIPALITY OF SAN SEBASTIAN

NOTES TO SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDEML AWARDS

JUNE 30,2()1()

NOTE A. EASIS OF PRESENTATION

The acaompanyrng schedule of expenditures oI lederal awards includes the federalgrant activity of the L{unicipality and is
presented on the modified accrual basis of accounling. Expendifures are rerognized when the related liability is incurred

The information in lhis schedule is presented in accordance wilh the rcquircments of Oi,iB Crcular A133, 'Audits of
States, Local Govemments and Nonprofrt organizalions'. Therefore, some amounts prcsented in lhis schedule may ditfer
from the amounls presented in, or used in the prcparation ol lhe basic financial slatements.

NOTE B. FEDERAL CFDA NUII|BER

The Catalog of Federal Domestic Assistance (CFoA) Number is a pogGm identification number determined by lhe OI\,IB

Calalog ol Federal Domeslic Assistance The frrst two digits identry the federal department or agency thal adminrsters lhe
program and the lasl lhree numbers are assigned by numeical sequence.

NOTE C. PASS.THROUGH ENTITY IDENTIFYING NUMBER

Slate or localgovemment rcdistnbutions offederalawards to the i,{unicipality, known as'pass-through awards', should be
treated by lhe Municipalily as though they were received direclly from lhe federal govemment OMB Circular A-133
requires the schedule to include lhe name of the pass thmugh enlity and the identifying number assigned by the pass'

through enlity for the federal awards received as a sub recipient. Numbers identjfied as N/A a€ nol applicable and
numbers dentified as N/AV ae notavailable.

NOTE D. RECONCILIATION OF EXPENDITURES PRESENTED IN THE SCHEDULE OF EXPENOITURES OF
FEOEML AWARDS TO THE EXPENOITURES PRESEI{TEO IN THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

14.195

14_218

14_231

14-871
't4_257

14_%3

14.850

93.600
93.708

93.575
10.568
20.600
97.036

Tolalfedelal aw ds exp€ndituEs
Tolal nonfuderal a ards erpendilures a)d

cnanges in basis of acmunljng

Tohl expendilures, fund stalemenls

Description Head Slart Fund
Ohcr

Govemm€nlal
Fund3------5-----.

990,280
7,948

m8,529
14,838

371,432
39,559

72,157
4i)5,451

354,244
4,921

94,858

3,050,220

Business.Type
Activilie3

$543 395

2,$2,442

2832M2 543395

54,273

$2 832 042 $6 U2 442

The federal expendfu re of Ru ral Renlal Housing Loan (Seclion 51 5 D rect Loan, CFDA 1 0 41 5) is a oan guaanlee aid do

nol rcpreseni a cash award or expendiiure forthe lisca year

ROMAN TORO &CO., CSP Ceftiled Public Accoutants and Busi ess Consuhants

PO BOX 3043 YAUCO PR 00698-3043 . TEL. (787) 856-6220 FAX: (787) ss6-6233 58
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REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING
AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL

STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WIIH GOVERNT,IENT AUD'I'IVG STAI',OAROS

Honomble l\rayor and ltlember ofthe
lr,,luricipal Assembly
l\.lunicipality ofSan Sebas&n, Puedo Rico

We have audiled the fnancial slalements of he governmental activaties, the business-type activities, each major
fund, and the agg.egate remaining fuld informatioa ot l,/unicipality of San SebastiAn, Puerto Rico as of and for the
year ended June 30, 2010, which co,lectively comprise Municipallty of San Sebastian, Puerto Rico's basic frnancial
slatements and have issued our report liereon dated December 2T, 2010 The repod on govemmental activities and
genemlfund was qualiied because lhe lrunicipality of San Sebastian, Pue.to Rico excluded ils obligation for certain
postemployment benefits. We conducled our audit in accordance wilh auditing standards generally accepted in the

United States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits @ntaified in Govennent Audling
Stardards, issued by the Comptroller Generalofthe United States.

lntemal Control Over Financial Reporting

ln plaoning and perlorming our audit, we considered [runicipality ol San Sebastian, Puerlo Rico's inlemal conlrol
over Inancial repo ng as a basis for designing our auditing procedures for the purpose of expressing our opinions

on lhe linancial statements, but nol for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the efiectiveness of l\runicipality of
San Sebastian, Puerto Rico's intemal conlrolover financial reporting. Accordingly, we do nol express an opinion on

he effectiveness ofthe l\runicipality ofSao Sebastian, Puerto Rico's intemal conlrol over liflancial repofting.

A deficiency in intenal contrcl exisb when the desig0 or operaiion of a control does not allow management or
employees, in the normal course of pe.forming their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and conect
mjsstatements on a limely basis. A materal wea*ress is a deficie0cy, or a combination of dericiencies, in inlernal

conlrol such that there is a reasonable possibility ftat a material misstalement ofthe entitys f.ancial statements will

not be prcvented, or detected and cor.ected on a timely basis.

Our consideration ol internal control over financial repoding was for he limited purpose described in the frst
paragraph and was not designed to identify all deiiciencies in inlemal control over fnancial reporting that might be

defciencies, significaot dericieflcies o. material weakrcsses. We did not identify any deflciencies in internal control

over inancial reporting lhatwe consider to be maledal weaknesses. as delined above.
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Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether Municipality of San Sebasfian, Puerto Rico's frnancial

statements are free of mate.ial misstatement, we peformed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws,

Iegulations, contracts, and grant agreemenls, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effecl on
he determinalion of financial slatement amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those provisaons

was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do nol express such an opinion. The results of our lesls
disclosed no insta0ces of noncompliance or other matlers that are required to be reported under Govennental
Audiling Standards.

This report is intended solely for the information and use of management, otherc within lhe entity, l\,lunicipal

Assembly, and federal awarding agencies and pass-through entities and is not intended to be aod should not be

used by anyone otherlhan these speciied pa ies.

LICENSE #35 . IN FORCE

Yauco, Puedo Rico

December 27, 2010

Stamp #2583310 was af,ixed to
the original of this report

ROIIAN TORO a CO., CSP Certifed Public Actotntants and Business Consuhants

PO BOX 301J vAUCo PR 00698-3043 . TEL. (787) 856-6220 FAx: O87) 856-6233 60
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT Ot,I COiIPLIANCE WTH REQUIREMENTS THAT COULD HAVE A
DIRECT AI{D I'ATERIAL EFFECT OiI EACH MAJOR PROGRAM AND ON INTERNALCONTROL

OVER COMPLIANCE lN ACCORDANCEWTH OltlB CIRCULAR A-133

Honorable lrayor ard [,,lember of the
lvlunicipal Assembly

lllunicipality of San Sebastian, Puerto Rim

Compliame

We have audited Municipality ol San Sebastian, Puerto Rico's compliance, wih fie types of compliance

rcquirements described in lhe OMB Cicular A-133 Conpliance Supplenent lhal could have a direct aod matetial

effect on each of lrunicipality of San SebasMn, Puerto Rico's major federal programs for lhe year ended June 30,

2010. l,lunicipaljty of San Sebasti6n, Puerio Rico's major iederal programs are identified in lhe summary of auditor's

results sectiofl ofthe accompanying schedule offndings and questioned costs. Compliance with the requirements of

laws, regulations, @nfacts, and g.ants applicable to each of its major federal programs is lhe responsibility ol
Municipality of San Sebastian's management. Our responsibility is b express an opinion on Municipality of San

Sebastian's clmpliance based on ouraudit.

We conducted our audit ofcompliance in acco.dance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States

of America; lhe standards applicable to financial audits contained in Gove.rment Aud{ing Stardards, issued by he
CompLoller General of he United States; and Oi,4B Circular A-133, Audils of Stdes, Local Govennents, and Non'

Ptoft Oryanizations.Fhose standards and O[rB Cilcular A-133 require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain

reasonable assurance about whether noncomplianc€ with the types of compliance requilemenb refuned to above

that could have a direct and material effect on a major federal program occured. An audit includes examining, on a

test basis, evidence about ltrlunicipality of San Sebastan, Puerto Rico's compliance wi$ those requirements and

performing such other procedurcs as we considered necessary in he circumstances. We believe $at ouI audil

provides a leasonable basis for our opinion. Our audit does not p.ovide a legal deteminalion ol L,lunicipalily of San

Sebastian, Puerto Rico's compliance with those requirements.

ln our opinion, [,,lunicipality of San Sebastian, Pue.to Rico, complied, in all malerial respects, with lhe compliance

requirements referred to above that could have a ditect and material effect on each of its maior fede.al plograms for

lhe year ended June 30,2010. However, he rcsults ol our auditing procedures disclosed ioslances of

noncompliance with hose requirements, whbh are requked lo be reported i0 accordance with OMB Circular A-133

ard which aae described in the accompanying schedule ot findings and questioned costs as item 2010-lll-1.

lnle.nal Conlrol Over Compliance

Management ol Municipality of San Sebastian, Puedo Rico, is responsible tor establishing and maintaining effeclive

internal cortrol over compliance with the requi.emenb of laws, regulations, conllacts, and grants applicable to

federal proglams. ln planning and performing our audit, we co0side.ed [,!unicipality of San Sebasti6n, Puerto Rico's

internal control over complia0ce with the .equiremenls that colld have a direct and material eflecl on a major federal

program to dete.mine the auditing prccedures for the purpose of expressing our opinion on compliance and to test

and repoft on inlernal control over compliance in accordance with O[rB Ckcular A-133, but not for the puQose of

erpressing an opiflion o0 lhe eflectiveness of intemal conlrol over compliance. Accordingly, we do not express an

opinion on ihe effecliveness ofMunicipality ofSan Sebasiien, Puedo Rico's internal control over compliance.
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lnlernal control over Comdiance (continued)

A deficiency in intenal @ntol ovet conpliance exitsls when he design or operation ol a control over @mplian@
does not allow management oremployees, in the normalcourse of performing their assigned functions, to plevent, or

detect and corect, noncompliance with a type of compliance requiement of a federal program on a timely basis. A

natetial weakness in intanal control over conpliarce is a deiciency, or combination of defciencies, in ioternal

control over compliance, such that lhere is a reasonable possibility hat material noncompliance with a type of
compliance requirementofa federalprogram willnot be prevented, oI detected and cofiected, on a limely basis.

Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in fie firct paragraph of
this sectio0 and was not designed to identily all deliciencies in iotemal control ovel @mpliance that might be

deiciencies, signifcant deficiencies, or material weaknesses. We did not identify any dericiencies in intemal control

over compliance that we considerto be malerial weaknesses, as derlned above.

l\,,lunicipality of San Sebastien, Puerto Rico's responses to the fndings idenlified in our audit are described in the

accompanying schedule of indings and questiooed costs. We did not audil Municipality of San Sebastian, Puerto

Rico's responses and, accordingly, we express no opinion on the respo0ses.

This report is intended solely for lhe information and use of management, lvlunicipal Assembly, others within lhe

entity, federal awarding agencies, and pass-lhrough entities and is not intended to be and should not be used by

anyone otherthan these speciried parties.

p*: G:e.
ROI\,IAN TORO & CO,, CSP

LICENSE #35,IN FORCE

Yauco, Puerto Rico

December 2T, 2010

Stamp #2583311 was affixed to

the originalof this repod

ROMAN TORO &CO., CSP Ce ife.l P blic Accot tatusond Business Consuhants

PO ROX t043 |AUCO PR 00698-3013 . TEL. (787) 856-6220 FAX: 087) 856-6231
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COIiIMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO

MUNICIPALITY OF SAN SEBASTIAN_ 
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JI,'NE 30. 2()1()

SECTION I-SUMMARYOFAUDITORS' RESULTS

FinancialSlalemenls

lype ol auditois repon issued E Unqualffied Oprnbn on I Ouamea opinion on

Business-typ€ Aclivilies, Govemmenlal
H€ad Sbn, Debl Sedice Adrvitbs and General

and Loans Funds Fund

E Adverse opinDn E Dsclaimer Opinion

- lnl€raL conrrol ove ll.a4ca cponing

. Signficanl control dericiency idenlilied?

. Malerial we2kness (es) identfred?

Noncompliance malerial lo inancial slalements noled?

lnlemal conlrd oler major programs:

. Signficanl mntrol deliciency idenlified?

. Maledalweakness (e6) ids{ified?

lype of audito/s reporl issued on compliance lor
Major Programs:

Any audit finding disclosed lhat are required lo be €poned
in acco.da0ce wih Seclion 510(a) of Circular A-133?

ldenlilicalion of Major Prog.ams:

CFDANumber

E v".

Ev*
! ves

E None repo(ed

Et"
Eto

I ves

Et*
E None reporled

Er"

E Unqualified Opinion f] Oualfiedopnon

E Adveueopmion ! oisctaimer oprnro'

E yes

Name ol Federa Prolram or C uster

Em

10.415 Rural Renlal Housing Loan

10.558 Child and Adull Care Food PDgram

14.195 Seclion I Housing Assistance Paymenls

- 14-218t 14.253 Commun(y Developmenl Elock Glanl - Enliuement Grants Clusler

14.871 Seclion I Housing Ckice VoudDrs Program

93.575 ChiH care and Developmenl Block Grant

93.600i 93.708 Hed $an Programs Clusler

Dollar threshold used lo distinguish between

TypeA and Type B Prog€ms: $300,000

- Audireequdified as low{isk auditee? E vo E m

SECTION II- FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FINDINGS

No fndings are reported.

ROM4N TORO & CO-, CSP Cenifed Public Acco&tants a d Business Consulants

PO Box 3043 YAUCO PR 00698-3043 . TEL. (787) 856-6220 F,LY: 1787) 856-6233 
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COMMON}VEALTH OF PUERTO RICO

MUNICIPALITY OF SAN SEBASTIAN
SCHEDULE 0F FINDINGS AND 0UESTIoNED COSTS (Continued)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30,2l)1O

SECTION III- FEDEMLAWARD FINDINGS

2010- t-'l

Type of finding: Signfficanl deficiency over compliance with federal regulaiions
Situation: Missing aulhorizalion for disposilion/transfer ofequipment afler program closing
FederalProgram: Early Head Start Program (93.600).

Compliance Requkements: Equipment and Real Poperty lvanaqement
PnorYea(s) Audit Finding(s): None.

Oueslioned Coslsr Undelermined

Condilion:
The Mlnicipalily of San Sebastan could not provide evidence of lederal award agency inslruclions and autiorization for lhe fnal
disposilion of the lt{unicipality's Eady Head Start program's equipment and propedy du ng its fnalclosing dudng tle prcgram s
2009 flscal year.

Conf3rt:
The ll,lunicipality closed ils Early Head Start program in Sepiember 2009, and, as part ol ils closing pocedurcs, lansfered the
equipmenl and property of lhe former program to a third-party. However, lhe lllunicipality did not provide us with evidence that

lhe program's federal awarding agency, lhe U.S. Deparlmenl of Heallh and Human Sewices, instructed and/or authorized lhe
fi,{unicipalily lo p€rform such lransfeE or any inlomalion regarding the final disposilion of such property.

Citeia:
Federal rcgulalions rcquirc rccipienls to popedy safeguaad all assels acquired with federal funds, and must aarounl to the
federal grantor for lhe final disposition of suci poperty.

Cause:
The Municipalily's managemenl informed us that the instruclions and aulhorizatons wele obtained from he federal awading
agency, bul he documenlalion was lost.

Etfect:
The Municipality transferred federally-funded equipmenl and property to a lhird-party witrout documenling lhat such aclions werc

from lhe specifc inslruclions and were aulhodzed by the federalgranlor.

Aucftto t" s Recofi nenal alion :
The fi4unicipality should obtain autio.izatjon iom lhe lederalawading agency regarding the frnaldisposition of federal program's

equipmenl and popedy. Addilionally, futurc closing ol any federal programs should warranl full documentation and archive ol
communic€lions with the ledeGl or pass.lhrcugh entjlies regarding closing instuctions and aulhorjzations, as well as evidence
documenling lhe actions laken by the Municipality to comply with such inslructons.

Views of rcsponsihle officials and cofiectiye aclions:
We lransferred all equipmenl boLrght wilh Early Head Start funds in accordance with lhe fedeml award agency. A rcp,esenlalive

oflhe federalagency informed Lrs hat hey did nol provide instuclions on how to lransler equipment to a lhird party. ln spite of
lhis, as soon as we received lhe information Irom them about the company lhat would continue lhe program operalions, we

lransfered all equipment bought with Eady Head Sta( funds. This lransacton was perlomed wilh lhe inleresl of assu ng and

safeguading he programs assels and lhe conlinuance of ils operalion providing services lo its participants.

End of Section

ROM4N TORO & CO., CSP Ceiifed Public Accotntanb and Business Consultants
PO BOx 3043 yAUCo PR 00698-301J . TEL. (787) 856-6220 FAX: 087) 856-62J1
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